Public Document Pack

QSwaIe

BOROUGH COUNCIL

AGENDA
AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING

Date: Tuesday, 26 October 2021
Time: 7.00 pm
Venue: Council Chamber, Swale House, East Street, Sittingbourne, ME10 3HT*

Membership:

Councillors Derek Carnell, Simon Clark (Chairman), Steve Davey, Simon Fowle, James Hall
(Vice-Chairman), Ann Hampshire, Denise Knights, Peter Macdonald and Eddie Thomas.

Quorum =3

Pages
Information for the Public
*Members of the press and public can listen to this meeting live. Details of how
to join the meeting will be added to the website on Monday 25 October 2021.

Meeting Link: To be added.
Privacy Statement

Swale Borough Council (SBC) is committed to protecting the privacy and
security of your personal information. As data controller we ensure that
processing is carried out in accordance with the Data Protection Act 2018
and the General Data Protection Regulations. In calling to join the meeting
your telephone number may be viewed solely by those Members and
Officers in attendance at the Skype meeting and will not be shared further.
No other identifying information will be made available through your
joining to the meeting. In joining the meeting you are providing the
Council with your consent to process your telephone number for the
duration of the meeting. Your telephone number will not be retained after
the meeting is finished.

If you have any concerns or questions about how we look after your
personal information or your rights as an individual under the
Regulations, please contact the Data Protection Officer by email at
dataprotectionofficer@swale.gov.uk or by calling 01795 417179.

Recording Notice
Please note: this meeting will be recorded and the recording will be added to the
website.

At the start of the meeting the Chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting
is being audio recorded. The whole of the meeting will be recorded, except



where there are confidential or exempt items.

You should be aware that the Council is a Data Controller under the Data
Protection Act. Data collected during this recording will be retained in
accordance with the Council’s data retention policy.

Therefore by entering the Chamber and speaking at Committee you are
consenting to being recorded and to the possible use of those sound recordings
for training purposes.

If you have any queries regarding this please contact Democratic Services.

1. Emergency Evacuation Procedure

The Chairman will advise the meeting of the evacuation procedures to
follow in the event of an emergency. This is particularly important for
visitors and members of the public who will be unfamiliar with the building
and procedures.

The Chairman will inform the meeting whether there is a planned
evacuation drill due to take place, what the alarm sounds like (i.e. ringing
bells), where the closest emergency exit route is, and where the second
closest emergency exit route is, in the event that the closest exit or route
is blocked.

The Chairman will inform the meeting that:
(a) in the event of the alarm sounding, everybody must leave the building
via the nearest safe available exit and gather at the Assembly points at
the far side of the Car Park. Nobody must leave the assembly point until
everybody can be accounted for and nobody must return to the building
until the Chairman has informed them that it is safe to do so; and
(b) the lifts must not be used in the event of an evacuation.
Any officers present at the meeting will aid with the evacuation.
It is important that the Chairman is informed of any person attending who
is disabled or unable to use the stairs, so that suitable arrangements may
be made in the event of an emergency.

2. Apologies for Absence and Confirmation of Substitutes

3. Minutes

To approve the Minutes of the Meeting held on 26 July 2021 (Minute Nos.
183 - 190) as a correct record.

4, Declarations of Interest

Councillors should not act or take decisions in order to gain financial or
other material benefits for themselves or their spouse, civil partner or


https://services.swale.gov.uk/meetings/documents/g3453/Printed%20minutes%20Monday%2026-Jul-2021%2019.00%20Audit%20Committee.pdf?T=1

person with whom they are living with as a spouse or civil partner. They
must declare and resolve any interests and relationships.

The Chairman will ask Members if they have any interests to declare in
respect of items on this agenda, under the following headings:

@) Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI) under the Localism Act
2011. The nature as well as the existence of any such interest must be
declared. After declaring a DPI, the Member must leave the meeting and
not take part in the discussion or vote. This applies even if there is
provision for public speaking.

(b) Disclosable Non Pecuniary Interests (DNPI) under the Code of
Conduct adopted by the Council in May 2012. The nature as well as the
existence of any such interest must be declared. After declaring a DNPI
interest, the Member may stay, speak and vote on the matter.
Advice to Members: If any Councillor has any doubt about the
existence or nature of any DPI or DNPI which he/she may have in any
item on this agenda, he/she should seek advice from the Monitoring
Officer, the Head of Legal or from other Solicitors in Legal Services as
early as possible, and in advance of the Meeting.

Part A Report for Recommendation to Council

5. Treasury Management Outturn Report for 2020/21 5-16

Part B Report for the Audit Committee to decide

6. Annual Financial Report 2020/21 and Audit Findings Report 17 - 146

Issued on Monday, 18 October 2021

The reports included in Part | of this agenda can be made available in alternative formats. For
further information about this service, or to arrange for special facilities to be provided at the

meeting, please contact DEMOCRATIC SERVICES on 01795 417330. To find out more about the
work of the Audit Committee, please visit www.swale.gov.uk

Chief Executive, Swale Borough Council,
Swale House, East Street, Sittingbourne, Kent, ME10 3HT



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 5

Audit Committee Agenda ltem:

Meeting Date 26 October 2021

Report Title Annual Treasury Management Report 2020/21

Cabinet Member Clir Roger Truelove, Leader and Cabinet Member for Finance
SMT Lead Lisa Fillery, Director of Resources

Head of Service Phil Wilson, Head of Finance and Procurement

Cead Offcer | EaLmEor, Head o Fnanee and Procurementand O
Key Decision No

Classification Open

Recommendations | 1. Approve the Treasury Management stewardship report for
2020/21.

2. Approve the Prudential and Treasury Management
Indicators within the report.

1. Purpose of Report and Executive Summary

1.1 The Council’s Treasury Management activity is underpinned by the Chartered
Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s (CIPFA’s) Code of Practice on
Treasury Management (“the Code”), which requires local authorities to
produce annual Prudential Indicators and a Treasury Management Strategy
Statement on the likely financing and investment activity. The Code also
recommends that members are informed of Treasury Management activities at
least twice a year. The latest version of the Code was adopted by the Council
in February 2021.

1.2  Treasury Management is defined as “the management of the Council’s
investments and cash flows, its banking, money market and capital market
transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with those activities;
and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks”. No
Treasury Management activity is without risk; the effective identification and
management of risk are integral to the Council’s Treasury Management
objectives.

1.3 For 2020/21 the Investments Section of the Kent County Council (KCC)
Finance Department had operational responsibility for the daily treasury
management duties. KCC Finance in undertaking this work had to comply
with this Council’s Treasury Management Strategy. Overall responsibility for
Treasury Management remained with the Council.

Page 5 1




1.4  This report:

e s prepared in accordance with the CIPFA Treasury Management Code

and the Prudential Code;

e details the implications of treasury decisions and transactions;

e gives details of the outturn position on Treasury Management transactions

in 2020/21; and

e confirms compliance with Treasury limits and Prudential Indicators.

1.5 This report will be submitted to Council on 10 November 2021.

2. Background

Borrowing Requirement and Debt Management

2.1  The overall borrowing position is summarised below:

Balance on | Movement | Balance on

31/3/2020 in Year 31/3/2021

£000 £000 £000

Capital Financing Requirement 42,739 5,634 48,373
Other Liabilities (cost of leases for equipment) 0 0 0
Borrowing Capital Financing Requirement 42,739 5,634 48,373
External Borrowing (25,000) 10,000 (15,000)
Cumulative External Borrowing Requirement 17,739 15,634 33,373

2.2  Where capital expenditure is to be financed in future years by charges to
revenue as assets are used by the Council, the expenditure results in an
increase in the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), a measure of the capital
expenditure incurred historically by the Council that has yet to be financed.

2.3  The reason for the increase in the CFR in 2020/21 is due to the capital

expenditure on works undertaken as part of the Sittingbourne Town Centre
regeneration project which were financed from borrowing. The CFR will be
reduced in the future by the Minimum Revenue Provision which will be funded
by contributions from rental income.

2.4 In 2020/21, the Council took out five loans from other local authorities. The

details of the loans are in the table below:

Page 6




Local Authority Loan Borrowing | Duration | Borrowing Loan
Value Rate of the Date | Repayment
£000 Loan Date

Essex County Council 10,000 0.50% 30 days | 28/04/2020 | 28/05/2020

Gwynedd Borough Council 5,000 0.24% 32 days | 28/05/2020 | 29/06/2020

Basildon Borough Councll 5,000 0.24% 32 days | 28/05/2020 | 29/06/2020

London Borough of Islington 5,000 0.08% 30 days | 29/06/2020 | 29/07/2020

London Borough of Havering 5,000 0.27% | 364 days | 25/08/2020 | 24/08/2021

Investment Activity

2.5 The Council holds significant investment funds, representing income received
in advance of expenditure plus balances and reserves held. During 2020/21,
the Council held average daily cash balances of £38 million, (E33 million for
2019/20).

2.6 The Council’s budgeted investment income for 2020/21 was £208,770 and the
actual income received was £166,000, of which £135,000 was from the
Council’s long-term investment in the Church, Charities and Local Authorities
(CCLA) Mutual Investment Property Fund.

2.7  The table below summarises the Council’s investment portfolio at 31 March
2021. All investments made were in line with the Council’s approved credit
rating criteria at the time of placing the investment, and still met those criteria
at 31 March 2021.

Balance Invested

Counterparty Long-Term | 4 31 March 2021

(MMF = Money Market Funds) Rating £1000

Invesco MMF AAAMmM( 3,000

JPM Liquidity MMF AAAMMF 3,000

SSgA MMF AAAMMF 2,275

Morgan Stanley MMF AAAMMf 2,840

Black Rock MMF AAAMMS 3,000

Aberdeen MMF AAAMmM( 3,000
Deutsche MMF AAAMMT 3,000
Sub Total Cash & Cash Equivalents 20,115
CCLA Property Fund unrated 3,000
Sub Total Long-Term Investments 3,000
Total 23,115

Page 7 3




2.8 The ratings above are from Fitch credit rating agency. A description of the
grading is provided below:

e AAAmMmmf:. Funds have very strong ability to meet the dual objectives of
providing liquidity and preserving capital.

2.9 The treasury management position for the year is summarised below:

Investments Balance on | Movement | Balance on | Average
31/03/20 in Year 31/03/21 Rate
£000 £000 £000 %
Cash and Cash Equivalents 21,238 (1,123) 20,115 0.08
Long-Term Investments 3,000 0 3,000 4.50
TOTAL INVESTMENTS 24,238 (1,123) 23,115
Borrowing
Long-Term Borrowing (5,000) 5,000 0 1.18
Short-Term Borrowing (20,000) 5,000 (15,000) 0.57
TOTAL BORROWING (25,000) 10,000 (15,000)

2.10 The long-term investment shown in the table above is the Council’s investment
in the CCLA Property Fund.

2.11

2.12

2.13

In keeping with the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government’s
(MHCLG’s) Guidance on Investments, the Council maintained a sufficient level
of liquidity through the use of Money Market Funds, overnight deposits and the
use of call accounts.

The Council sought to optimise returns commensurate with its objectives of
security and liquidity.

The criteria applied by the Head of Finance and Procurement for the approval
of a counter party for deposits are:

e credit rating - a minimum long-term of A-;

e credit default swaps;

e share price;

e reputational issues;

e exposure to other parts of the same banking group; and

e country exposure.

Page 8 4



2.14 The investments permissible by the 2020/21 Treasury Strategy were:

Counterparty Cash Limits
Debt Management Office (Debt Management Account Deposit Unlimited
Facility) and Treasury Bills

Local Authorities £3m
Major UK banks / building societies. (Barclays, HSBC, Lloyds £3m
Banking Group, RBS Group, Santander UK, Nationwide,

Standard Chartered) unsecured deposits

Svenska Handelsbanken unsecured deposits £3m
Leeds Building Society unsecured deposits £1.5m
Close Brothers unsecured deposits £1.5m
Money Market Funds £3m each
Pooled Funds e.g. Absolute return, Equity income, Corporate £3m each
Bond Funds

CCLA Property Fund £3m

Supranational Bonds

£3m in aggregate

Corporate Bonds

£3m in aggregate

Non treasury investments

To be agreed on a case
by case basis

Covered Bonds

£3m in aggregate with
£1m limit per bank

2.15 This administration takes the view that the Capital Strategy should reflect the

following principles:

e investing in sustainable, affordable and social housing to increase overall

supply;

e using the ability to borrow at low rates of interest for the benefit of the
physical and social infrastructure of the borough and for broader social

value; and,

e ensuring that the costs of borrowing are manageable long term within the

revenue budget

2.16 The maximum permitted duration for deposits is 13 months. The Head of
Finance and Procurement in consultation with the Leader and Cabinet
Member for Finance may consider longer duration. Bonds can be purchased

with a maximum duration of five years.

2.17 The definition of investments in CIPFA’s revised Treasury Management Code
now covers all the financial assets of the Council, as well as other non-
financial assets which the Council holds primarily for financial return. At 31
March 2021 the Council held £3.599 million of a longstanding portfolio of 13
investment properties within the borough. These investments generated £0.2
million of investment income for the Council in 2020/21 after taking account of

direct costs, representing a rate of return of 4.5%.

Page 9




External Context

2.18

2.19

The coronavirus pandemic dominated 2020/21, leading to almost the entire
planet being in some form of lockdown during the year. The start of the
financial year saw many central banks cutting interest rates as lockdowns
caused economic activity to grind to a halt. The Bank of England cut the Bank
Rate to 0.1% and the UK government provided a range of fiscal stimulus
measures, the size of which has not been seen in peacetime.

The Bank of England (BoE) held Bank Rate at 0.1% throughout the year but
extended its Quantitative Easing programme by £150 billion to £895 billion at
its November 2020 meeting. In its March 2021 interest rate announcement,
the BoE noted that while Gross Domestic Product would remain low in the
near-term due to COVID-19 lockdown restrictions, the easing of these
measures means growth is expected to recover strongly later in the year.
Inflation is forecast to increase in the near-term and while the economic
outlook has improved, there are downside risks to the forecast, including from
unemployment which is still predicted to rise when the furlough scheme is
withdrawn.

Compliance

2.20

2.21

2.22

The Council has complied with its Prudential and Treasury Management
Indicators for 2020/21 which were set as part of the Treasury Management
Strategy agreed by Council in February 2020.

In Appendix | the outturn position for the year against each Prudential Indicator
is set out.

The Head of Finance and Procurement confirms that all treasury management
activities undertaken during the year complied fully with the CIPFA Code of
Practice and the Council’s approved Treasury Management Strategy.

Treasury Advisers

2.23

Arlingclose has been the Council’s treasury advisers since May 2009.
Officers of the Council meet with Arlingclose regularly and high quality and
timely information is received from them.

Capital Strategy

2.24

The 2017 Prudential Code includes a requirement for local authorities to
provide a Capital Strategy, a summary document approved by full Council
covering capital expenditure and financing, treasury management and non-
treasury investments. The Council’s Capital Strategy for 2020/21, complying
with CIPFA’s requirement, was approved by Council on 26 February 2020.

3. Proposal

3.1

Members are asked to approve the report.

Page 10 6



4. Alternative Proposals

4.1 No alternative proposals have been considered and compliance with the
CIPFA Code is mandatory.

5. Consultation Undertaken

5.1 Arlingclose have been consulted.

6. Implications

Issue Implications

Corporate Plan Supports delivery of the Council’s objectives.

Financial, Resource and Property | As detailed in the report

Legal, Statutory and CIPFA produce a framework for managing treasury
Procurement activities, called a ‘Code’. Councils are legally
required to have regard to this Code and members of
CIPFA are expected to comply with its requirements.
This report fulfils the Council’s legal obligation under
the Local Government Act 2003 to have regard to
both the CIPFA Code and the MHCLG Guidance

Crime and Disorder Not relevant to this report

Environment and Climate/ Not relevant to this report
Ecological Emergency

Health and Wellbeing Not relevant to this report

Safeguarding of Children, Young | Not relevant to this report
People and Vulnerable Adults

Risk Management and Health Not relevant to this report
and Safety

Equality and Diversity Not relevant to this report
Privacy and Data Protection Not relevant to this report

7. Appendices

7.1  Appendix I: Treasury Management and Prudential Indicators

8. Background Papers

None

Page 11 7



Appendix |
Treasury Management and Prudential Indicators for 2020/21
Introduction

The Local Government Act 2003 requires the Council to have regard to the
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s Prudential Code for Capital
Finance in Local Authorities (the Prudential Code) when determining how much
money it can afford to borrow. The objectives of the Prudential Code are to ensure,
within a clear framework, that the capital investment plans of local authorities are
affordable, prudent and sustainable, and that treasury management decisions are
taken in accordance with good professional practice. To demonstrate that the
Council has fulfilled these objectives, the Prudential Code sets out the following
indicators that must be set and monitored each year.

This report compares the approved indicators with the outturn position for 2020/21.
Actual figures have been taken from or prepared on a basis consistent with, the
Council’s Statement of Accounts

Capital Expenditure: The Council’s capital expenditure and financing may be
summarised as follows.

Capital Expenditure and Financing 222C(3l/12a1|

£000
Total Capital Expenditure 9,603
Capital Receipts 24
Grants and Other Contributions 2,292
Reserves 848
Direct Revenue Funding 27
Borrowing 6,412
Total Financing 9,603

Page 12 8



Appendix |

Treasury Management and Prudential Indicators for 2020/21

Capital Financing Requirement: The Capital Financing Requirement (CFR)
measures the Council’'s underlying need to borrow for a capital purpose.

Capital Financing Requirement 31/03/21 1 31/03/21 31/03/21
P 9 Req Estimate Actual | Difference

£000 £000 £000
Total CFR 43,736 48,373 4,637
Less: Other Liabilities 0 0 0
Borrowing CFR 43,736 48,373 4,637
External Borrowing (5,000) | (15,000) (10,000)
Cumulative External Borrowing Requirement 38,736 33,373 (5,363)

External borrowing: as at 31 March 2021 the Council had £15 million of external

borrowing.

Operational Boundary for External Debt: The Operational Boundary is based on
the Council’s estimate of most likely (i.e. prudent but not worst case) scenario for
external debt. It links directly to the Council’s estimates of capital expenditure, the
capital financing requirement and cash flow requirements, and is a key management
tool for in-year monitoring. Other long-term liabilities comprise finance lease, and
other liabilities that are not borrowing but form part of the Council’s debt.

Operational Boundary and Total Debt Bgilnoj’ézr; Actﬁillogclazblt Complied
£000 £000

Borrowing 45,000 15,000

Other Long-Term Liabilities 500 0

Total Operational Boundary 45,500 15,000

Page 13




Appendix |
Treasury Management and Prudential Indicators for 2020/21

Authorised Limit for External Debt: The Authorised Limit is the affordable
borrowing limit determined in compliance with the Local Government Act 2003. Itis
the maximum amount of debt that the Council can legally owe. The Authorised Limit
provides headroom over and above the Operational Boundary for unusual cash
movements.

31/03/21 31/03/21

Authorised Limit and Total Debt Boundary | Actual Debt | Complied

£000 £000
Borrowing 55,000 15,000 v
Other Long-Term Liabilities 2,000 0 v
Total Authorised Limit 57,000 15,000 v

The Head of Finance and Procurement confirms that there were no breaches to the
Authorised Limit and the Operational Boundary during 2020/21.

Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream: This is an indicator of
affordability and highlights the revenue implications of existing and proposed capital
expenditure by identifying the proportion of the revenue budget required to meet
financing costs, net of investment income.

31/03/21 31/03/21
Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream | Estimate Actual | Difference
% % %
General Fund Total 4.41 3.17 1.24

Interest Rate Exposures: This indicator is set to control the Council’s exposure to
interest rate risk. The upper limits on fixed and variable rate interest rate exposures,
expressed as the proportion of net interest payable was:

Interest Rate Exposures 31/03/21 2020/21
P Actual Limit | Complied
% %
Interest on Fixed Rate Investments 0 -100 v
Interest on Variable Rate Investments -100 -100 4
Interest on Fixed Rate Borrowing 100 100 v
Interest on Variable Rate Borrowing 0 100 v

Page 14 10



Appendix |

Treasury Management and Prudential Indicators for 2020/21

Maturity Structure of Borrowing: This indicator is set to control the Council’s
exposure to refinancing risk. The upper and lower limits on the maturity structure of

fixed rate borrowing were:

31/03/21 Upper Lower
Actual Limit Limit | Complied

% % %
Under 12 months 100 100 0 v
12 months and within 24 months 0 100 0 v
24 months and within 5 years 0 100 0 v
5 years and within 10 years 0 100 0 v
10 years and above 0 100 0 v

Principal Sums Invested for Periods Longer than 364 days: The purpose of this
indicator is to control the Council’s exposure to the risk of incurring losses by seeking
early repayment of its investments. The limits on the long-term principal sum

invested to final maturities beyond the period end were:

2020/21

£000

Actual Principal Invested Beyond Year End 3,000

Limit on Principal Invested Beyond Year End 10,000
Complied v

Investment Benchmarking

Averalge Actual Original Estimate Average Average 7-day
eturn on Return on Bank Rat LIBID Rat
Investments Investments an ate ate
2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 2020/21
0.08% 0.30% 0.10% -0.08%
(The London Interbank Bid Rate (LIBID) is a bid rate; the rate at which a bank is
willing to borrow from other banks)
Page 15 11




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 6

Audit Committee

Meeting Date 26 October 2021

. Annual Financial Report 2020/21 and Audit Findings
Report Title Report
Cabinet Member IC::.IIr Roger Truelove, Leader and Cabinet Member for

inance

SMT Lead Lisa Fillery, Director of Resources
Head of Service Phil Wilson, Head of Finance and Procurement
Lead Officer Phil Wilson, Head of Finance and Procurement
Classification Open

Recommendations Members are asked to:

1. Note the external auditor’'s Audit Findings Report
(Appendix I);

2. Approve the Letter of Representation (Appendix II)
on behalf of the Council;

3. Approve the Annual Financial Report for the year
ended 31 March 2021 including the Annual
Governance Statement (Appendix Ill) including the
adjustments set out in the Audit Findings Report.

4. Approve that the Chairman of this Committee signs
and dates the Annual Financial Report for the year
ended 31 March 2021.

1. Purpose of Report and Executive Summary
1.1 This report seeks the Audit Committee’s approval of the Council’s Annual Financial
Report for 2020/21 and includes the external auditor’'s Audit Findings Report for
their consideration.
2. Background

Audit Findings Report

2.1 Grant Thornton UK LLP has been the Council’s external auditors since 1
September 2012. Their audit of the financial statements began in August 2021.

2.2 The Audit Findings Report highlights the key matters arising from the audit of the
Council's Annual Financial Report for the year ended 31 March 2021. Itis also
used to report the audit findings to management and those charged with
governance. Grant Thornton are required to report whether the Council's Annual
Financial Report presents a true and fair view of the financial position, its
expenditure and income for the year and whether they have been properly
prepared. They are also required to reach a formal conclusion on whether the
Council has put in place proper arrangements to secure value for money.

Page 17



4.

2.3

The Audit Findings Report is Appendix I. Grant Thornton will present this report to
the Committee on 26 October.

Letter of Representation

2.4

2.5

The letter sets out assurances from the Council to Grant Thornton that relevant
accounting standards have been complied with and gives further assurances that
the Council has disclosed information where to withhold it would have undermined
the accuracy and reliability of the Annual Financial Report. The letter also covers
the responsibilities of the Director of Resources and those of the Council in
producing the Annual Financial Report for the Council. Grant Thornton require the
Audit Committee to approve the Letter of Representation before they can issue
their opinion and conclusion on the Council’s accounts for 2020/21.

The Letter of Representation is Appendix Il. Grant Thornton will present this to the
Committee on 26 October.

Annual Financial Report 2020/21

2.6

2.7

2.8

Appendix Il is the Annual Financial Report for the year ended 31 March 2021.

This is the version published in July 2021 and Grant Thornton will detail any
proposed amendments to the Annual Financial Report in their Audit Findings report
(Appendix 1).

There has been a change in the timetable for publication and approval of the
Annual Accounts for 2020/21. The Accounts and Audit (Amendment) Regulations
2021 extended the statutory audit deadlines for 2020/21 and 2021/22 for all local
authorities. The unaudited accounts had to be published by 31 July 2021 and the
publication date for audited accounts was 30 September 2021 for all local authority
bodies.

The draft unaudited accounts were published on 29 July 2021 and due to limited
auditor capacity, the completion date for the audit date of the financial statements
was delayed to October 2021.

Proposals

3.1

3.2

The Annual Financial Report for the year ended 31 March 2021 is attached as
Appendix IlI.

The Director of Resources and the Head of Finance and Procurement would like to
express their thanks to Grant Thornton for their efforts in completing the required
audit work in time for reporting to this Committee. As in the past, the Director of
Resources and the Head of Finance and Procurement will work with the external
auditors to review the accounts and to continue to maintain and improve them in
the future.

Alternative Options

4.1

The Annual Financial Report has been prepared in accordance with statutory
accounting principles. No other options have been considered as it is a legal
requirement that the financial statements are prepared and signed by the person
presiding at this meeting.

Page 18



5. Consultation Undertaken or Proposed

5.1 Consultation has taken place with Grant Thornton throughout this process.

6. Implications

Issue Implications

Good financial management is key to supporting
the Corporate Plan objectives.

The External Auditor’s opinion is that the
Council’'s accounting statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Council as

Corporate Plan

Financial, Resource and

Property at 31 March 2021 and its income and expenditure
for the year then ended.
The production of the financial statements is a
Legal, Statutory and legal requirement under the 2015 Accounts and
Procurement Audit regulations as amended by the Accounts
and Audit (Amendment) Regulations 2021.
Crime and Disorder No direct issues

Environment and Climate/
Ecological Emergency

Health and Wellbeing No direct issues

Safeguarding of Children,
Young People and Vulnerable No direct issues

No direct issues

Adults
Risk Management and Health . .

No direct issues
and Safety
Equality and Diversity No direct issues
Privacy and Data Protection No direct issues

7. Appendices

7.1 The following documents are to be published with this report and form part of the
report:

7.1.1 Appendix I: Audit Findings Report

7.1.2 Appendix II: Letter of Representation

7.1.3 Appendix lll: Annual Financial Report for the year ended 31 March 2021
8. Background Papers

8.1 Detailed working papers are held in the Finance Department.

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



° Grant Thornton

The Audit Findings for
Swale Borough Council

Year ended 31 March 2021

_Bwae Borough Council I
&1t March 2021
@D

N
=




Commercial in confidence

Contents

Section Page The contents of this report relate only to the
obo matters which have come to our attention,
1. Headlines 3 which we believe need to be reported to you
2 Financial statements 5 as part of our audit planning process. It is
not a comprehensive record of all the
relevant matters, which may be subject to
L. Independence and ethics 18 change, and in particular we cannot be held
responsible to you for reporting all of the
risks which may affect the Council or all

Youir key Grant Thornton

3. Value for money arrangements 16
team members are: Y 9

Darren J Wells

o Appendices weaknesses in your internal controls. This
Q Key Audit Partner A. Follow up to prior year action plan 20 report has been prepared solely for your
Q@ E: Darren.J Wells@uk.gt.com benefit and should not be quoted in whole or
’ o gt B. Audit adjustments 21 in part without our prior written consent. We
N C. Fees 22 do no1€ accept any regoonsibilitg f9r any loss
N Ol Durbi . occasioned to any third party acting, or
fver burbin D. Action plan 23 refraining from acting on the basis of the
Manager E. Audit letter in respect of delayed value for money work 24 content of this report, as this report was
E: Oli JDrsEhe not prepared for, nor intended for, any
: Oliver.d.Durbin@uk.gt.com

other purpose.

This Audit Findings presents the observations arising from the audit that are significant to the ~ Crant Th}:{mton.UK LLjng ”Titec? 'ic’gi\';\t/gl

PRIt . s . . partnership registered in England and Wales:
resp?nSIbllltg of tho?e charged with governance to oversee the f|n0n0|ql repor.tmg Process, as |\ 60307712, Registered office: 30 Finsbury
required by International Standard on Auditing (UK) 260. Its contents will be discussed with

: . Square, London, EC2A 1AG. A list of members is
management and the Audit Committee. available from our registered office. Grant

Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated
by the Financial Conduct Authority. Grant
Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant
Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the
member firms are not a worldwide partnership.
Services are delivered by the member firms.
GTIL and its member firms are not agents of,
and do not obligate, one another and are not
liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

1. Headlines

This table summarises the
key findings and other

Financial Statements

matters a rising from the Under International Standards of Audit (UK) (ISAs) Our audit work was completed remotely during June-October. Our findings are
. and the National Audit Office (NAO) Code of Audit ~ summarised on pages 5 to 16. We have identified disclosure and wording adjustments
SthUtOFU audit Of ‘SWG|e Practice ('the Code'), we are required to report to the financial statements only, resulting in a £nil adjustment to the Council’s
Borough Council (‘the whether, in our opinion: Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Audit adjustments are detailed in
P P P )
Cou I’]C”’] and the +  the Council's financial statements give a true Appendix B. Our follow up of recommendations from the prior year’s audit are
ti fthe C i’ and fair view of the financial position of the included in Appendix A.
preparation o e ouncilis Swale Borough Council and their income and Our work is substantially complete and there are no matters of which we are aware
financial statements for the expenditure for the year ending 31 March 2021; that would require modification of our audit opinion or material changes to the
year ended 31 March 2021 for and financial statements, subject to the following outstanding matters;
. . ave been proper repared in accordance with uality review by senior auditors of completed wor
th h d with have been properly prepared i d ith Quality review by seni di f pleted k
ose charged wi :
9 theﬂ?”:?tFA/LASAA? code gf proc’ucz fm local * receipt of management representation letter
authority accounting and prepared in
governance. occordc%wce with thegLocalpAuSIt and * review of the final set of financial statements.
Accountability Act 2014. We have concluded that the other information to be published with the financial

statements, is consistent with our knowledge of your organisation and the financial

We are also required to report whether other statements we have audited.

information published together with the audited Our anticipated audit report opinion will be unmodified.
financial statements (including the Annuall

Governance Statement (AGS), Narrative Report and

Pension Fund Financial Statements), is materially

inconsistent with the financial statements or our

knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise

appears to be materially misstated.

ez abed

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 3



Commercial in confidence

1. Headlines

vz abed

Value for Money (VFM) arrangements

Under the National Audit Office (NAO)
Code of Audit Practice ('the Code'), we
are required to consider whether the
Council has put in place proper
arrangements to secure economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources. Auditors are now required to
report in more detail on the Council's
overall arrangements, as well as key
recommendations on any significant
weaknesses in arrangements identified
during the audit.

Auditors are required to report their
commentary on the Council's
arrangements under the following
specified criteria:

- Improving economy, efficiency and
effectiveness;

- Financial sustainability; and

- Governance

We have not yet completed all of our VFM work and so are not in a position to issue our Auditor’s Annual Report. We expect to issue our
Auditor’s Annual Report by 20/01/2022. This is in line with the National Audit Office's revised deadline, which requires the Auditor's Annual
Report to be issued no more than three months after the date of the opinion on the financial statements.

As part of our planning assessment, we considered whether there were any risks of significant weakness in the Council’s arrangements for
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. At the planning stage we did not identify any significant risks and
based on our current understanding this remains the case.

Statutory duties

The Local Audit and Accountability Act
2014 (‘the Act’) also requires us to:

* report to you if we have applied any
of the additional powers and duties
ascribed to us under the Act; and

* to certify the closure of the audit.

We have not exercised any of our additional statutory powers or duties.

We have completed the majority of work under the Code and expect to be able to certify the completion of the audit when we give our audit
opinion.

Significant Matters

We did not encounter any significant difficulties or identify any significant matters arising during our audit.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



2. Financial Statements

Overview of the scope of our audit Audit approach

This Audit Findings Report presents the observations arising
from the audit that are significant to the responsibility of
those charged with governance to oversee the financial
reporting process, as required by International Standard on
Auditing (UK) 260 and the Code of Audit Practice (‘the
Code’). Its contents will be discussed with management and
g-?e Audit Committee.

(Ds auditor we are responsible for performing the audit, in
ccordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK)

Nhd the Code, which is directed towards forming and

Wlpressing an opinion on the financial statements that have
been prepared by management with the oversight of those
charged with governance. The audit of the financial
statements does not relieve management or those charged
with governance of their responsibilities for the preparation
of the financial statements.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Our audit approach was based on a thorough
understanding of the Council's business and is risk based,
and in particular included:

¢ An evaluation of the Council's internal controls
environment, including its IT systems and controls;

* Substantive testing on significant transactions and
material account balances, including the procedures
outlined in this report in relation to the key audit risks

Delayed completion

The targeted completion date for the audit of the financial
statements was 30/09/2021.

Due to limited auditor capacity this has been delayed to
October 2021.

Lisa Fillery, who began as the new S151 officer as Director of
Resources on 01/10/2021 will be in post to sign off
completion procedures with the auditor.

Commercial in confidence

We have substantially completed our audit of your financial
statements and subject to outstanding queries being
resolved, we anticipate issuing an unqualified audit opinion
following the Audit Committee meeting on 26 October 2021.
These outstanding items include:

*  Quality review of completed work

* Receipt of management representation letter; and
* Review of the final set of financial statements.
Acknowledgements

We would like to take this opportunity to record our
appreciation for the assistance provided by the finance
team and other staff. The impact of the pandemic has
meant that both your finance team and our audit team
faced audit challenges again this year, such as verifying the
completeness and accuracy of information provided
remotely produced by the entity and cover for sickness
absence. This has caused an unanticipated delay in
completing the audit testing. The audit team would like to
note that the quality of workpapers received from the
Council staff was good and that the team was responsive to
our queries.



Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements

Council Amount (£) Qualitative factors considered

Materiality for the financial statements 1,560,000 This has been calculated based on 1.95% of your gross
@ expenditure (cost of services]) in the draft accounts
Performance materiality 1,170,000 This has been calculated as 75% of materiality for the
financial statements, based upon our assessment of the
Our approach to materiality likelihood of a material misstatement.

The concept of materiality is
fundamental to the preparation of the
financial statements and the audit
process and applies not only to the
monetary misstatements but also to
disclosure requirements and
adherence to acceptable accounting
practice and applicable law.

Trivial matters 78,000 This has been calculated as 5% of headline materiality

Materiality levels remain the same as
reported in our audit plan March 2021.

9¢ abed

"4

"

L

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 6



Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements - Significant risks

Significant risks are defined by ISAs (UK] as risks that, in the judgement of the auditor, require special audit consideration. In
identifying risks, audit teams consider the nature of the risk, the potential magnitude of misstatement, and its likelihood.
Significant risks are those risks that have a higher risk of material misstatement.

This section provides commentary on the significant audit risks communicated in the Audit Plan.

Risks identified in our Audit Plan Commentary

Management override of controls We have:

* Evaluated the design effectiveness of management controls over journals through walkthrough testing. The controls in place are considered
reasonable.

* Analysed the journals listing and determined the criteria for selecting higher risk unusual journals. For Swale Borough Council, our risk scoring
identified post year end journals and those posted by irregular system users to be as having the greatest potential of being high risk based on
the small number of people with access to the system. Our testing therefore focused on these items, no items to raise to the Audit Committee
were found.

* identified and tested journals made during the year and at the accounts production stage which scored high in our risk assessment. We

tested this sample of journals for appropriateness by corroborating to supporting third party evidence of workings justifying the journal. All
journals tested were considered appropriate and could be supported with sufficient evidence.

/¢ abed

* Gained an understanding of the accounting estimates and critical judgements applied by management and considered their reasonableness
*  We did not identify nor have we been made aware of, any significant unusual transactions.

From the work performed, there were no items arising in respect to this risk which requires reporting to the Audit Committee.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. . 7



Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements - Significant risks

Risks identified in our Audit Plan

Commentary

Valuation of land and buildings (including Council
Investment Properties)

The valuation of the Council’s land and building, investment
properties and council dwelling assets represents a
significant estimate by management in the financial
statements.

We designed our work to address the risk that the valuation
of these assets was materially misstated.

o
jabl
Q

During our audit procedures we have:

Evaluated management’s processes and assumptions for the calculation of the estimate, the instructions issued to the
valuer and the scope of their work.

Evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the valuation expert.
Written to the valuer to confirm the basis on which the valuation was carried out.

Challenged the information and assumptions used by the valuer to assess completeness and consistency with our
understanding of the valuer’s report and the assumptions that underpin the valuation.

Tested a sample of revaluations made during the year to ensure they have been input correctly into your asset register.

Evaluated the assumptions made by management for those assets not revalued during the year and how management
have satisfied themselves that these are not materially different to the current value at year end. The auditor has
confirmed that assets have been revalued within the five year cycle specified by the CIPFA code.

Our audit work has not identified any issues in respect of valuation of land and buildings.

@
Nyaluation of pension fund net liability

OPhe Council's net defined benefit liability represents a
significant estimate in the financial statements. The
estimate is complex given the large number of scheme
members and the sensitivity of the estimate to key
assumptions. We focused the significant risk to assumptions
used by the actuary.

For the significant risk, we have:

updated our understanding of the processes and controls put in place by management to ensure that the Authority’s
pension fund net liability is not materially misstated and evaluated the design of the associated controls;

evaluated the instructions issued by management to the actuary for this estimate and the scope of the actuary’s work;

assessed the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the actuary who carried out the Authority’s pension fund
valuation;

undertaken procedures to confirm the reasonableness of the actuarial assumptions made by reviewing the report of the
consulting actuary (as auditor’s expert) and performing any additional procedures suggested within the report.

We have also:

assessed the accuracy and completeness of the information provided by the Authority to the actuary to estimate the
liability;

tested the consistency of the pension fund asset and liability and disclosures in the notes to the core financial statements
with the actuarial report from the actuary.

At the date of writing, there are no issues arising from our work in respect of this risk which require reporting to the Audit
Committee. We will update this position to the date of issuing our auditor’s report.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements - Other risks

Risks identified in our Audit Plan

Commentary

Error in expenditure recognition

o
et

Audit procedures undertaken included:

* Aninspection of transactions around the financial year end to assess whether they had been included in the correct
accounting period. This also involved a review of post year end bank statement and invoice transactions. No cut-off issues
were identified.

*  Sample testing of year end accruals for expenditure not yet invoiced and agreement to the bill value once received

* Assessment of year end accruals in comparison to prior year total and size to ensure completeness. No obvious error or
omission was identified.

* Manual journals posted as part of the year end accounts preparation reducing expenditure were investigated and
considered for reasonableness

From the work performed, there are no issues arising from our work in respect of this risk which require reporting to the Audit
Committee.

%ccounting for grant revenues and expenditure correctly

N
©

Audit procedures undertaken to date include:

+ Discussions with management to understand the different types of material grants received during 2020/21 and what the
conditions are in the grant agreements. Therefore concluding whether the Council should be acting as agent or principal
for accounting purposes;.

*  Walkthrough procedures to test the conditions for payment out to other entities and how these are monitored

* Testing material grant revenues by corroborating to grant agreement, remittance and bank statement receipt to confirm
whether the Council has accounted for these correctly.

From the work performed, there are no issues arising from our work in respect of this risk which require reporting to the Audit
Committee.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements - key judgements
and estimates

This section provides commentary on key estimates and judgements inline with the enhanced
requirements for auditors.

Significant judgement or estimate

Summary of management’s
approach

Audit Comments

Assessment

Land and Buildings - £67.0m
Heritage Assets - £2.1m

Investment Properties - £3.6m

o€ abed

The council’s accounting policy
for non-current assets is at Note
1n. The policy covers accounting
and valuation issues. The
policies for heritage and
investment assets are 1h and 1j
respectively.

Management have asked the
valuer to consider the year end
value of non-revalued properties
and the potential valuation
change in the assets revalued as
at 01 January 2021 movement to
31 March 2021, applying industry
average indices and to determine
whether there has been a
material change in the total value
of these properties. The valuer's
assessment of assets not
revalued has identified no
material change to the property’s
value.

In the course of our work we have performed an assessment of management’s expert,
checked the completeness and accuracy of the underlying information used to determine
the estimate as well as considering the reasonableness of increase/decrease in estimate.

The adequacy of disclosure of estimate in the financial statements has also been considered
and is deemed reasonable.

There were also a number of issues identified in the prior year Audit Findings Report which
have been considered below.

Valuation of Depreciated Replacement Cost (DRC) assets

It was identified in the prior year that for specialised assets revalued using the DRC method,
the costs were originally being calculated using an “All-in Tender Price Index” from the
Building Cost Information Service (BCIS). In 2021, the valuer has confirmed that cost
estimates have been resourced from a specialist quantity surveyor and BCIS rates updated
and adjusted for the Swale Location.

Investment properties

As per the policy for annual valuation, management have had the full investment property
portfolio revalued. To check this occurred, we obtained the listing of investment properties
on the fixed asset register and agreed that all of them were included in the revaluation
report. The revaluation methodology and assumptions used in the valuation are considered
reasonable. There are no indicators of material misstatement.

Heritage Assets

Management have engaged an expert valuer of clocks to value the clock tower in Sheerness.
They did not perform a full valuation exercise but their estimate has been accepted as it has
been agreed to the insured value of the clock tower. The asset valuation in the accounts
explains the upwards movement in heritage assets.

Assessment

® Dark Purple We disagree with the estimation process or judgements that underpin the estimate and consider the estimate to be potentially materially misstated

® Blue

We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider optimistic

We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider cautious

® Llight Purple We consider management’s process is appropriate and key assumptions are neither optimistic or cautious

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements - key judgements
and estimates

Summary of management’s

Significant judgement or estimate  approach Audit Comments

Assessment

Net pension liability — £66.6m The Council’s net pension liability ~ + We assessed you actuary, Barnett Waddingham, to be competent, capable and
at 31 March 2021 is £66.6m (PY objective

£59.0m) comprising the Kent
County Council Local
Government Pension Scheme.
The Council uses Barnett
Waddingham LLP to provide

actuarial valuations of the

*  We have used PwC as auditors expert to assess actuary and assumptions made by
actuary - use table to compare with Actuary assumptions

Assumption Actuary PwC range
VETT)

Council’s assets and liabilities Discount rate 1.95% 1.95%
o derived from scheme. A full Pension increase rate 2.80% Set at CPI.
Q actuarial valuation is required PWC report
(e} every three years. explains that
@ The latest full actuarial valuation this is centre
(li) was completed as at March 2019. of range.
Given the significant value of the o o o
net pension fund liability, small Salaryigrowth 3.80% 3% — 4%
changes in assumptions can
result in significant valuation Life expectancy — Males currently 21.9 21.5-22.1
movements. aged 45/ 65 20.5 20.5-23.1
Life expectancy — Females currently 24.8 24.8-26.4
aged 45 /65 23.3 23.3-25.0
*  We assessed the completeness and accuracy of the underlying information used to
determine the estimate and checked the reasonableness of the Council’s share of LPS
pension assets.
*  We consider the disclosure of estimate in the financial statements to be adequate.
Assessment

® Dark Purple We disagree with the estimation process or judgements that underpin the estimate and consider the estimate to be potentially materially misstated
® Blue We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider optimistic
We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider cautious

@ light Purple We consider management’s process is appropriate and key assumptions are neither optimistic or cautious

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 1



Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements - other
communication requirements

We set out below details of Issue

Commentary
other matters which we, as
. . Matters in relation We have previously discussed the risk of fraud with the Audit Committee. We have not been made aware of any
auditors, are Fequred bU to fraud other incidents in the period and no other issues have been identified during the course of our audit procedures

auditing standards and the
Code to communicate to
+nose charged with

Matters in relation We are not aware of any related parties or related party transactions which have not been disclosed
to related parties

Matters in relation

You have not made us aware of any significant incidences of non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations

@OVGFHO nce. to laws and and we have not identified any incidences from our audit work.
D regulations

W . o .

N Written A letter of representation will be requested from the Council.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

representations

Confirmation
requests from
third parties

We requested from management permission to send confirmation requests to various financial institutions and
other local authorities for bank and investment balances. This permission was granted and requests sent.

We have received direct confirmation for all balances.

Accounting
practices

We have evaluated the appropriateness of the Council's accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial
statement disclosures.

Audit evidence
and explanations/
significant
difficulties

All information and explanations requested from management was provided.




Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements - other
communication requirements

Issue

Commentary

Going concern

Our responsibility

As auditors, we are required to “obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence
about the appropriateness of
management's use of the going
concern assumption in the
preparation and presentation of the
financial statements and to conclude
whetherthere is a material
uncertainty about the entity's ability
O o continue as a going concern” (ISA

W (uK) 570).

abed

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

In performing our work on going concern, we have had reference to Statement of Recommended Practice -
Practice Note 10: Audit of financial statements of public sector bodies in the United Kingdom (Revised 2020). The
Financial Reporting Council recognises that for particular sectors, it may be necessary to clarify how auditing
standards are applied to an entity in a manner that is relevant and provides useful information to the users of
financial statements in that sector. Practice Note 10 provides that clarification for audits of public sector bodies.

Practice Note 10 sets out the following key principles for the consideration of going concern for public sector
entities:

* the use of the going concern basis of accounting is not a matter of significant focus of the auditor’s time and
resources because the applicable financial reporting frameworks envisage that the going concern basis for
accounting will apply where the entity’s services will continue to be delivered by the public sector. In such
cases, a material uncertainty related to going concern is unlikely to exist, and so a straightforward and
standardised approach for the consideration of going concern will often be appropriate for public sector
entities

+ for many public sector entities, the financial sustainability of the reporting entity and the services it provides is
more likely to be of significant public interest than the application of the going concern basis of accounting.
Our consideration of the Council's financial sustainability is addressed by our value for money work, which is
due within 3 months of this report.

Practice Note 10 states that if the financial reporting framework provides for the adoption of the going concern
basis of accounting on the basis of the anticipated continuation of the provision of a service in the future, the
auditor applies the continued provision of service approach set out in Practice Note 10. The financial reporting
framework adopted by the Council meets this criteria, and so we have applied the continued provision of service
approach. In doing so, we have considered and evaluated:

* the nature of the Council and the environment in which it operates

* the Council's financial reporting framework

* the Council's system of internal control for identifying events or conditions relevant to going concern

* management’s going concern assessment.

On the basis of this work, we have obtained sufficient appropriate audit evidence to enable us to conclude that:
* a material uncertainty related to going concern has not been identified

* management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is
appropriate.



Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements - other
responsibilities under the Code

Issue Commentary

Other information We are required to give an opinion on whether the other information published together with the audited financial
statements including the Annual Governance Statement, Narrative Report and Pension Fund Financial Statements,
is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

No inconsistencies have been identified. We plan to issue an unmodified opinion in this respect

lectters on which We are required to report on a number of matters by exception in a number of areas:

Qe report by +  if the Annual Governance Statement does not comply with disclosure requirements set out in CIPFA/SOLACE
wxcept'on guidance or is misleading or inconsistent with the information of which we are aware from our audit,

N * if we have applied any of our statutory powers or duties.

* where we are not satisfied in respect of arrangements to secure value for money and have reported significant
weaknesses.

We have nothing to report on these matters

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 10



2. Financial Statements - other
responsibilities under the Code

Issue Commentary

Specified We are required to carry out specified procedures (on behalf of the NAO) on the Whole of Government Accounts
procedures for (WGA) consolidation pack under WGA group audit instructions.

Whole of ® Note that work is not required as the Council does not exceed the threshold;

Government

Accounts

Certification of the
glosure of the audit

We intend to delay the certification of the closure of the 2020/21 audit of Swale Borough Council in the audit report
due to incomplete VFM work.

Gg ab

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Commercial in confidence



Commercial in confidence

3. Value for Money arrangements

Revised approach to Value for Money
work for 2020/21

On 1 April 2020, the National Audit Office introduced a
new Code of Audit Practice which comes into effect from
audit year 2020/21. The Code introduced a revised
approach to the audit of Value for Money. (VFM]

There are three main changes arising from the NAO’s
new approach:

A new set of key criteria, covering financial
Q sustainability, governance and improvements in
(Q economy, efficiency and effectiveness

) . . . .

* . More extensive reporting, with a requirement on the

o) auditor to produce a commentary on arrangements
across all of the key criteria.

* Auditors undertaking sufficient analysis on the
Council's VFM arrangements to arrive at far more
sophisticated judgements on performance, as well as
key recommendations on any significant weaknesses
in arrangements identified during the audit.

The Code require auditors to consider whether the body
has put in place proper arrangements to secure
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources. When reporting on these arrangements, the
Code requires auditors to structure their commentary on
arrangements under the three specified reporting
criteria.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

%

Improving economy, efficiency Financial Sustainability Governance

and effectiveness Arrangements for ensuring the Arrangements for ensuring that
Arrangements for improving the body can continue to deliver the body makes appropriate

way the body delivers its services. services. This includes planning decisions in the right way. This
This includes arrangements for resources to ensure adequate includes arrangements for budget
understanding costs and finances and maintain setting and management, risk
delivering efficiencies and sustainable levels of spending management, and ensuring the
improving outcomes for service over the medium term (3-5 years) body makes decisions based on

users.

appropriate information

Potential types of recommendations

A range of different recommendations could be made following the completion of work on the body’s arrangements to secure
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, which are as follows:

2

Statutory recommendation

Written recommendations to the body under Section 24 (Schedule 7) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act
2014. A recommendation under schedule 7 requires the body to discuss and respond publicly to the report.
Key recommendation

The Code of Audit Practice requires that where auditors identify significant weaknesses in arrangements to
secure value for money they should make recommendations setting out the actions that should be taken by the
body. We have defined these recommendations as ‘key recommendations’.

Improvement recommendation

These recommendations, if implemented should improve the arrangements in place at the body, but are not
made as a result of identifying significant weaknesses in the body’s arrangements



Commercial in confidence

3. VFM - our procedures and action plan

We have not yet completed all of our VFM work and so are not in a position to issue our Auditor’s Annual Report. We expect to
issue our Auditor’s Annual Report by December 2021. This is in line with the National Audit Office's revised deadline, which

requires the Auditor's Annual Report to be issued no more than three months after the date of the opinion on the financial
statements.

As part of our work, we considered whether there were any risks of significant weakness in the Council's arrangements for

securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. We have not identified any significant weaknesses from
our initial procedures.

)€ abed

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

L. Independence and ethics

We confirm that there are no significant facts or matters that impact on our independence Further, we have complied with the requirements of the National Audit Office’s Auditor
as auditors that we are required or wish to draw to your attention. We have complied with Guidance Note 01issued in May 2020 which sets out supplementary guidance on ethical
the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard and confirm that we, as a firm, and each requirements for auditors of local public bodies.

covered person, are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the

financial statements Details of fees charged are shown in Appendix C.

Transparency

Grant Thornton publishes an annual Transparency Report, which sets out details of the
action we have taken over the past year to improve audit quality as well as the results of
internal and external quality inspections. For more details see Transparency report 2020
(grantthornton.co.uk)

Audit and non-audit services

Q) For the purposes of our audit we have made enquiries of all Grant Thornton UK LLP teams providing services to the Council. The following non-audit services were identified:

«Q
@D

%ervice Fees £ Threats identified Safeguards

Audit related

Certification of Housing TBC Self-Interest because The level of this recurring fee taken on its own is not considered a significant threat to independence as the fee

Benefit Claim this is a recurring fee for this work was £26,000 in the prior year in comparison to the total fee for the audit of £54,769 and in
particular relative to Grant Thornton UK LLP’s turnover overall. Further, it is a fixed fee and there is no
contingent element to it. These factors all mitigate the perceived self-interest threat to an acceptable level.

To mitigate against the self review threat , the timing of certification work is done after the audit has completed,
materiality of the amounts involved to our opinion and unlikelihood of material errors arising and the Council
has informed management who will decide whether to amend returns for our findings and agree the accuracy of
our reports on grants.

Self review because GT
provides audit services

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 18



Appendices



Commercial in confidence

A. Follow up of prior year action plan -
Audit of Financial Statements

In 19/20 we identified one recommendation for the Council as a result of issues identified during the course of our audit. We
agreed the recommendation with management and report below on the progress made by management.

Assessment Issue and risk Follow up
At 31 March 2020 the impairment allowance for debtors had not been Management considered actual recovery rates during the year to make their provisions
U adjusted to take into account the impact of the pandemic, as management assessment for 2020/21. No issues were identified.
8 considered that it was too early to assess the extent of any adverse impact
D on the collectability of the debt.
IS
o

Controls

@® High - Significant effect on financial statements
® Medium - Limited Effect on financial statements

Low - Best practice

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 20



B. Audit Adjustments

We are required to report
all non trivial misstatements
to those charged with
governance, whether or not
the accounts have been
adjusted by management.

o
&b

%here have been no items
Rientified by the auditor that
management have not
adjusted for (there are no
unadjusted items to report)

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Impact of adjusted misstatements

Commercial in confidence

There were no audit identified, adjusted misstatements in the financial statements

Misclassification and disclosure changes

The table below provides details of misclassification and disclosure changes identified during the audit which have been made in the final set

of financial statements.

Disclosure errors Auditor recommendations Adjusted?

Annual Governance Statement. Section 6 is A new paragraph is to be added in section 6 to clarify that there were no v

not clear on whether there are any significant  significant governance issues in year.

governance deficiencies in year

Note 29 narrative had not been updated To update the Assets Held for Sale disclosure to accurately reflect the v
position as at 31/03/2021

Note 41 - Leases - amount disclosed as ‘later Figure to be updated v

and 1year and note later than 5 years’ is

disclosed as £600,000 but should be

£620,000 to reconcile to workings

Note 456 capital receipts reserve movement Note 45 and Movement in Reserves statement to be reconciled v

varies to the Movement in Reserves Statement

by £14,000

21



C. Fees

We confirm below our final fees charged for the audit and provision of non-audit services.

Audit fees Proposed fee Final fee
Council Audit 46,769 46,769
Raising the bar / regulatory factors 7,500 7,500
Revised ISA requirements 6,500 6,500
VFM Report review 9,000 9,000
Any final adjustments to be agreed with PSAA - TBC
-
LQQ\J{otcxl audit fees (excluding VAT) £69,769 TBC
D
m\e audit fee disclosure in the accounts has ben reconciled to the above.
Non-audit fees for other services Proposed fee Final fee
Audit Related Services: Certification of Housing Benefit Subsidy TBC TBC
Claim
Non-Audit Related Services: None Nil Nil
Total non-audit fees (excluding VAT) TBC TBC

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Commercial in confidence

22



Commercial in confidence

D. Action plan - Audit of Financial
Statements

We have identified one recommendation for the Council as a result of issues identified during the course of our audit. We have
agreed our recommendations with management and we will report on progress on these recommendations during the course
of the 2021/22 audit. The matters reported here are limited to those deficiencies that we have identified during the course of
our audit and that we have concluded are of sufficient importance to merit being reported to you in accordance with auditing
standards.

-ﬁssessment Issue and risk Recommendations
8 Accrued annual leave figure has been agreed to be recalculated every 4 Full recalculation to be performed in 21/22
o) years. The last calculation was p.erf?rmt.”—:c'I in 16/17. Movem'ent in figure is Management response
estimated to have been £22k which is trivial and so no adjustment has been ) ] )
(% made however the figure will be out of date next year. Agreed - caleulation will take place in 21/22

Controls
@® High - Significant effect on financial statements
® Medium - Limited Effect on financial statements

Low - Best practice

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 23



Commercial in confidence

E. Audit letter in respect of delayed VFM
work LY GrantThornton

F 2

%

The Audit Committee Grant Thornton UK LLP
Swale Borough Council 30 Finsbury Square
Swale House London

East Street EC2A 1AG
Sittingbourne T +44 (0320 7353 5100
ME10 3HT F +44 (0)20 7383 4301

For the attention of those charged with governance (the Audit Commitiee, Swale Borough Council).

vt abed

Under the 2020 Code of Audit Practice, for relevant authorities other than local NHA bodies we are
required to issue our Auditor's Annual Report no later than 30 September or, where this is not possible,
issue an audit letter setting out the reasons for delay.

As a result of the ongoing pandemic, and the impact it has had on both the preparers and auditors of the
accounts to complete their work as quickly as would normally be expected, the National Audit Office has
updated its guidance to auditors to allow us to postpone completion of our work on arrangements to
secure value for money and focus our resources firstly on the delivery of our opinions on the financial
statements. This is intended to help ensure as many as possible could be issued in line with national
timetables and legislation.

As a result, we have therefore not issued our Auditor's Annual Report, including our commentary on
arrangements to secure value for money. We now expect to publish our report no later than 31
December 2021.

For the purposes of compliance with the 2020 code, this letter constitutes the required audit letter
explaining the reasons for delay.

Yours sincerely

Darren Wells

Director

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 24



Gy abed

0 Grant Thornton

grantthornton.co.uk

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member firms,
as the context requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each
member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not
obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.



This page is intentionally left blank



Swale House, East Street,

Sittingbourne, Kent ME10 3HT

DX59990 Sittingbourne 2 wa e
Phone: 01795 417850

Fax: 01795 417141
www.swale.gov.uk

BOROUGH COUNCIL
Making Swale a better place

Grant Thornton UK LLP Please ask for Lisa Fillery
30 Finsbury Square #Direct 01795 417270
London email lisafillery@swale.gov.uk
EC2A 1AG Our Ref

Your Ref

Date October 2021

Dear Sir or Madam,
Swale Borough Council
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

This representation letter is provided in connection with the audit of the financial
statements of Swale Borough Council for the year ended 31 March 2021 for the
purpose of expressing an opinion as to whether the Council financial statements are
presented fairly, in all material respects in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards, and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21 and applicable law.

We confirm that to the best of our knowledge and belief having made such inquiries
as we considered necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves:

Financial Statements

i.  We have fulfilled our responsibilities for the preparation of the Council’s
financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21 ("the Code"); in particular the
financial statements are fairly presented in accordance therewith.

ii.  We have complied with the requirements of all statutory directions affecting
the Council and these matters have been appropriately reflected and
disclosed in the financial statements.

iii.  The Council has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that
could have a material effect on the financial statements in the event of non-
compliance. There has been no non-compliance with requirements of any
regulatory authorities that could have a material effect on the financial
statements in the event of non-compliance.

& disability
Page 47 B confident

—— COMMITTED =




Vi.

Vii.

viii.

Xi.

Xii.

Xiii.

We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and
maintenance of internal control to prevent and detect fraud.

Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including
those measured at fair value, are reasonable. We are satisfied that the
methods, the data and the significant assumptions used by us in making
accounting estimates and their related disclosures are appropriate to achieve
recognition, measurement or disclosure that is reasonable in accordance with
the Code and adequately disclosed in the financial statements.

We confirm that we are satisfied that the actuarial assumptions underlying the
valuation of pension scheme assets and liabilities for IAS19 Employee
Benefits disclosures are consistent with our knowledge. We confirm that all
settlements and curtailments have been identified and properly accounted for.
We also confirm that all significant post-employment benefits have been
identified and properly accounted for.

Except as disclosed in the financial statements:

a. there are no unrecorded liabilities, actual or contingent

b. none of the assets of the Council has been assigned, pledged or
mortgaged

C. there are no material prior year charges or credits, nor exceptional

or non-recurring items requiring separate disclosure.

Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately
accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the requirements of
International Financial Reporting Standards and the Code.

All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which
International Financial Reporting Standards and the Code require adjustment
or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed.

We have considered the adjusted misstatements, and misclassification and
disclosures changes schedules included in your Audit Findings Report. The
Council’s financial statements have been amended for these misstatements,
misclassifications and disclosure changes and are free of material
misstatements, including omissions.

The financial statements are free of material misstatements, including
omissions.

Actual or possible litigation and claims have been accounted for and disclosed
in accordance with the requirements of International Financial Reporting
Standards.

We have no plans or intentions that may materially alter the carrying value or
classification of assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements.

Page 48



XiV.

We have updated our going concern assessment and cashflow forecasts in
light of the Covid-19 pandemic. We continue to believe that the Council’s
financial statements should be prepared on a going concern basis and have
not identified any material uncertainties related to going concern on the
grounds that:

a.

the nature of the Council means that, notwithstanding any intention
to liquidate the Council or cease its operations in their current form,
it will continue to be appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting because, in such an event, services it performs can be
expected to continue to be delivered by related public authorities
and preparing the financial statements on a going concern basis will
still provide a faithful representation of the items in the financial
statements

the financial reporting framework permits the entry to prepare its
financial statements on the basis of the presumption set out under
a) above; and

the Council’s system of internal control has not identified any events
or conditions relevant to going concern.

We believe that no further disclosures relating to the Council's ability to continue as a
going concern need to be made in the financial statements

Information Provided

XV.

XVi.

XVii.

XViii.

We have provided you with:

a.

access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to
the preparation of the Council’s financial statements such as
records, documentation and other matters;

additional information that you have requested from us for the
purpose of your audit; and

access to persons within the Council via remote arrangements, in
compliance with the nationally specified social distancing
requirements established by the government in response to the
Covid-19 pandemic. from whom you determined it necessary to
obtain audit evidence.

We have communicated to you all deficiencies in internal control of which
management is aware.

All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are

reflected in the financial statements.

We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the
financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

Page 49



xix.  We have disclosed to you all information in relation to fraud or suspected fraud
that we are aware of and that affects the Council and involves:

a. management;

b. employees who have significant roles in internal control; or

C. others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

xX.  We have disclosed to you all information in relation to allegations of fraud, or
suspected fraud, affecting the financial statements communicated by
employees, former employees, analysts, regulators or others.

xxi.  We have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected
non-compliance with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered
when preparing financial statements.

xxii.  We have disclosed to you the identity of the Council's related parties and all
the related party relationships and transactions of which we are aware.

xxiii. ~ We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation and claims
whose effects should be considered when preparing the financial statements.

Annual Governance Statement

xxiv.  We are satisfied that the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) fairly reflects
the Council's risk assurance and governance framework and we confirm that
we are not aware of any significant risks that are not disclosed within the AGS.

Narrative Report

xxv.  The disclosures within the Narrative Report fairly reflect our understanding of
the Council's financial and operating performance over the period covered by
the Council’s financial statements.

Approval

The approval of this letter of representation was minuted by the Council’s Audit
Committee at its meeting on 26 October 2021.

Yours faithfully

Name: Lisa Fillery
Position: Director of Resources
Date: October 2021

Signed on behalf of the Council

Page 50



Including the Statement of Accounts for y

ear ending 31 March 2021

LIVE MUSIC |



Page 52



Annual Financial Report 2020/21 - Contents

OVEIVIBW......ceensssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnsssssssnssssnnsnnsnnsnsnnnssnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn
Reviewing the Council’s Performance...........ccccoceiiiicsmmmmniinnnsiccsseesse s essssssssnnns
Annual Governance Statement ... —————————
X0 o L1 o =T o 1= oo o
Statement of Responsibilities ..o
Explanatory Note to the Accounts: Expenditure and Funding Analysis
Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement..........coooommrmiiiniiiiineees i
Movement in Reserves Statement............ccoooniiiincccccsn s
= = T ot o 1= . G
Cash Flow Statement ........... s
Notes to the Core Financial Statements........ccccceiiiiiiiiiiiiimnnnicinnnnn
Accounting POlICIeS ....ccccommmiiiiiricicr e

1. Accounting Policies — General Principles

2. Accounting POlICIES......ccooiiiiieieeeeeeeeee e

3. Accounting Standards That Have Been Issued But HaveNg

4.  Accounting Estimates — Coronavirus Assumptions

5. Events after the Reporting Period............cccoc NN
6. Authorisation of Accounts for Issue
Pay and Pensions..........ccccoovimmmmminnnnnscsseeeenneenns
7 Officers’ Remuneration and Termination [Be
8. Members AllowancCes.........coovvveveeeeionc e

9. Defined Benefit Pension Scheme ..,
Day to Day Spending — Revenue............
10. Expenditure and Income Analy
11.
12.
13.
14.
15.

16.
17.
18.
19.
20.
21.
22.
23.

24.
25.
26°
5




Annual Financial Report 2020/21 - Contents

3G T Mo g o Bl =Ty 0 g T O =T [ (o =N 69
34. Short-Term Creditors ..........coociiiiiieiieee e
35. S106 Deferred Revenue ReCEIPES .......uuuuuiiiiiiiiiii e
36. Capital Grants and ContribUtioNS..............uuuiiiiiiiiiies

R N o {0 V=1 o] S

38. Long-Term Debtors — Other...........uuuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii )
39. Short-Term DebIOrS .......ccouiiiiiiciiiie e eeeeee e e e s

40. Cash and Cash Equivalents..........ccccccvvviiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeee
== =T . G 3
41, Le@SES ..o AN NG 3

Financial InStruments.........ccoommiicccce e g e g .
42. Financial InStruments.............oooooiiiiiiee NG

The Council’s Relationship with Other Organisations...............3 s
43. Related Parties ........cccoviiiiieiiiiiece e e e
44, Group ACCOUNES ......ooovviiiieiieieieiieiiieeeeeeeeeeeeieee e oon e T T vt e e e e

Further Adjustments Between Accounting Basis and Fune i
45. Adjustments Between Accounting Basis and Funding B
ReQUIALIONS ...t e eeenensnseneninnne 79
46. Expenditure and Funding Analysis 2019/20, crevveeeeeee e N uniiiiiiiiieeeeees 80

47. Collection Fund Surplus/Agency Arrang
48. The Calculation of the Council Tax Bg
49. Income Collectable from Business 4
50. Debt Impairment............ccccceeeiin,
51. Provision for Check, Challenge dng

L] [0 X171 o

Page 54



| Overview |

The Council

Swale Borough Council is located on Kent County’s north coast between Medway,
Maidstone and Canterbury, around 45 miles from London, but set in rolling Kentish
countryside, and less than 30 miles from the Channel Tunnel. With an area of 37
square kilometres and a population of 150,100, Swale includes the towns of
Sittingbourne and Faversham, the Isle of Sheppey, and an extensive rural hinte

street cleansing, parking, planning, leisure, homelessness support, housi
public conveniences and environmental health.

The Council’s priorities are:

e building the right homes in the right places rting quality jobs for all;
e investing in our environment and resp gly/to global challenges;
e tackling deprivation and creating eq ittesfor everyone;

e renewing local democracy and maki uncil fit for the future

Ramsgate

® Canterbury

\‘Ashford
\L

Folkstone

® Crown Copyright. All Rights
Reserved (100018386) (2009)

Page 55



Reviewing the Council’s Performance

The Council’s Expenditure and Income for 2020/21

Financial Performance
The table below shows spend against budget for the Council’s service departments&

Budget
2020/21
£°000
Chief Executive Department 267
Policy, Communications & Customer Services 1,230
Democratic & Electoral Services
Director of Regeneration
Housing, Economy & Community Services
Planning
Commissioning, Environment & Leisure
Finance
Revenues & Benefits
Property
Licensing & Resilience Planning
Environmental Health
Information Technology

Internal Audit

Human Resources

Legal

Corporate Items

Cost of Services

Financed by:

Council Tax (8,623)

(8,623) 0

Coronavirus (Covid-19 ppopt Grants 0 (4,234) (4,234)

Business Rates (8,750) (8,750) 0

New Homes Bonu$. Grant (1,633) (1,633) 0

Revenue Support Gra (115) (115) 0

(Surplus) in Year (16) (1,337) (1,321)
/~\ S/

N\

Actual (Under)
Budget Spending spend
2020/21 2020/21 2020/21

£°000 £°000 £°000

(2,343) (3,338) (995)

(16) (1,337) (1,321)

191 191 0

tal movement in 2020/21 175 (1,146) (1,321)
“gy@ Fund Balance as at 31 March 2021 (2,168) (4,484) (2,316)

Page 56 2



Reviewing the Council’s Performance

The local authority accounting year runs from 1 April to 31 March. Throughout the
Accounts figures in brackets represent income or minus or negative figures.

There are regular reports to Cabinet and senior management on the monitoring of spen
against budget. In 2020/21 there was an underspend of £1,321,000 against the budg
The major reasons for the underspend are salaries, service savings and additional ing
There was a report to Cabinet on 14 July 2021 detailing how the Council spent its nme
against its budget and how this expenditure was financed, which can be found here:
https://services.swale.gov.uk/meetings/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=1 29&Mld=m

Procurement.

In addition, the Council:

e collected £87m of Council Tax for Police, Fire, Kent County C il (KCC), Parish
Councils and itself (£85m in 2019/20);

e collected £35m of Business Rates for the Gove t, Nre, KCC, and itself (£50m in
2019/20);

e paid out £37m on benefits and received £3 37m paid, £37m received in
2019/20).

Capital Spending for 2020/21

Where spending is on an asset which will benefit the Council over a number of years, it is
called capital. It is funded mainly by Govérnment grants, borrowing, reserves and capital
receipts (money from selling land and gtherassets). The largest element of capital spend

The tables below show capital @g er\d how they were funded.

N/ Revised Actual Over/
Capital Spending Budget Spending (Under)
2020/21 2020/21 Spending
£°000 £°000 £°000
Sittingbourne Towr _Centre.Regeperation 6,310 5,651 (659)
Disabled Facilities Gra 3,990 837 (3,153)
Leisure Centres 1,037 753 (284)
Faversham Recre snd Improvement 165 160 (5)
Public Toi L@ 503 244 (259)
Queenba shenden Klondyke Land 67 1,136 1,069
Impro 1
CarP ctric CHarging Points 62 139 77
?&gr\Ser ice 1,869 683 (1,186)
I 14,003 9,603 (4,400)

Page 57 3



Reviewing the Council’s Performance

Capital Funding 2020/21
£°000

Total Capital Spending 9,603

Source of Funding 4

Earmarked reserves

Capital grants and other contributions 2

Capital receipts 4 s
Direct Revenue Funding <\Q;
Borrowing 6,41

Total Capital Funding { 9,603/
_ A4
Pensions
The Council is a member of the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS), KCC
administers on the Council’s behalf. Every three years the value ' disvalued by a

firm of actuaries (professionally qualified independent consultants).
estimates how much money will be needed to pay pensions in the

method called discounting). If the liabilities are mg
Fund is in deficit. The higher the deficit of the Pg
contribution that will have to be made by the
is carried out every three years. The result o

view 3 Year Review
ionyDeficit Pension Deficit

£°000 £°000
57,367 20,067
59,027 15,453
66,646 15,453

Page 58 4



Reviewing the Council’s Performance

The reasons for the contrast in the valuations between the two methods are the different
methods and assumptions underlying their calculations.

Reports on the Kent Pension Fund are available from: KCC, Treasury and Investments,
County Hall, Maidstone, Kent ME14 1XQ or by using the following link:
https://www.kentpensionfund.co.uk/

How the Council Manages its Surplus Funds

year is due to reduced rates paid on the Council’s deposits as a resu
effect on the economy and financial markets.

The Council meets Government and accounting requirements o treasury.management
which emphasise the security of funds. The policy is to avoid unne ryrigk, so the

stions and a number
of very large, wide-ranging money market funds (these are well rated hi
pooled investment vehicles).

At 31 March 2021, the Council had three loans of £5
authorities. The rates ranged from 0.2% to 1.25%

How the Council Collects Tax

The Council collects Council Tax on behalf of KCC, , Fire, and Parishes, and
Business Rates for the Government, KCZy.and Fire, which is recorded in the Collection
Fund which can be seen on page 82. e year-end, this account had a deficit balance of
£20.1 million (surplus balance of £0. 31 March 2020).

ational Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 16 on Leases will be
ich will require a review of the Council’s existing lease arrangements to
viiat effect the new standard will have on their value in future accounts.

Page 59 S



| Reviewing the Council’s Performance

Accounting Estimates

In order to prepare the accounts, the Council makes accounting estimates for the value of
pensions, property, plant and equipment, financial instruments and the impairment
allowance for debtors. These are supported by professional advice from Barnett
Waddingham (actuaries on pensions), Arlingclose (treasury advisers on financial
instruments), Wilks, Head Eve (valuers for property plant and equipment). Their
professional advice is reviewed and challenged by Council officers, including comment

’ o

Future Financial Strategy
Medium Term Financial Plan

19 pandemic. Huge calls have been made upon the resources and ingehuity of the Council
to help residents deal with the consequences of the paridemic:

from the Covid pandemic. The 2021/22 budget sdppoxts the delivery of the priorities in the
Corporate Plan in this Covid environment whiclymgans maintaihing and where possible
i thrQuyh the recovery.

ds provided significant additional financial support
tecated what is likely to be the last general

once again been deferred. Governme
in year to deal with Covid and has alsa

Homes Bonus and introducing a
Government funding it has bee aw down from Reserves to achieve a
balanced position. Use of Res
moving forward.

financial planning tha
councils have playegy
additional funding toe
funding reductions.

uncil’'s website here: https://services.swale.gov.uk/assets/Latest-
udget-and-Capital-Programme/2021-22/Budget%20Book%202021 -

Page 60 6



Reviewing the Council’s Performance

Councils are required to balance their revenue budget annually and cannot borrow to
achieve a balanced position. However, they have very far reaching powers to borrow to
fund capital expenditure. This has historically been funded from borrowing from the Publi
Works Loan Board (PWLB), which is part of the Debt Management Office which is part
the Treasury. Borrowing can be for up to 50 years at rates which can be below comm
rates.

Government and the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPEA

and the 50-year maturity rate is 1.68% (Standard Rate, 6 January).
d g o increase overall supply;
ere he benefit of the physical

an announcing a borrowing facility with no
project agreed by Cabinet will have a borrowing

Council in February 2020 agreed the following principl

investing in sustainable, affordable and soci
e using the ability to borrow at low rates giNn
and social infrastructure of the boro
e ensuring that the costs of borrowin
revenue budget.

Council also agreed that in future, rathey
linkage to a particular project, the speg

cil its accounts will need to be incorporated into those of the Council
ing the company to have the same financial year as the Council.

Page 61 7



Reviewing the Council’s Performance \

e Swale House refurbishment - in December Cabinet received an update report on
this project followed by a detailed report to Cabinet in March. The Capital budget
allows for £3m, this is a prudent figure reflecting energy savings and additional
rental income to meet borrowing costs. Cabinet may decide on a higher figur
and this will then be reflected in following years’ revenue budgets.

Debt is only a temporary source of finance, since loans must be repaid, and this i is therefe
replaced over time by other financing, usually from revenue which is known as !
Revenue Provision (MRP). MRP is a charge to the revenue budget which the
the Balance Sheet; it is not an external payment. Alternatively, capital receip
used to replace debt finance.

a council is investing in a capltal prolect it can fund this capital i
and this is known as internal borrowing. Internal borrowing defer

tested and risks considered.

The Head of Finance and Procurement believ, the Capital Strategy and Capital
Programme proposed are sustainable.

Reserves

The key principles for the managem erves moving forward are:

e to maintain a prudent levelpf rese to allow the Council to deal with
unexpected one-off ¢
e funding the Council’s

e to fund one-off itén

a minimum of £1.5m as its General Fund balance and there
he balance at 31 March 2021 was £4.484m. The Council

s pandemic has enormous implications for the residents of the Borough. It
g huge demands on the Council to provide at very short notice new services
e community hubs and almost all Council staff are working from home. It has

Page 62 8



Reviewing the Council’s Performance \

This pandemic is the most serious crisis for the country since World War 2. It
therefore has a huge potential impact on the Council’s finances. Overall the total impact in
2020/21 was £3.9m. A report detailing the impact of the coronavirus on the Council’s
finances went to Cabinet on 14 July 2021 and can be found here:

https://services.swale.gov.uk/meetings/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=129&MId=3489&V

As part of the coronavirus response, the Government announced a range of grant st
to support businesses to be administered by local billing authorities e.g., the Smg

i.e., open, closed, sector, additional. The Council was responsible for paying
grants to the businesses and are then reimbursed by Government using a g
Section 31 of the Local Government Act 2003 (S31).

Where the Council has acted as an agent of government neither the i
payments are recorded in the Comprehensive Income & Expendlture c
information on the individual grants dealt with on an agency basis-s hle short-
term creditors note 34.

‘ ese schemes.
However, for the purpose of meetlng the accounting regulatlons two of these schemes will

ents fotalling £174,500 under these
sQunting regulations, the

ate the net budget gap which irrecoverable
Council’s balanced budget set before the start of

ways. The latest détails.can dnd here: hitps://swale.gov.uk/news-and-your-
council/coronavirus

Page 63 9



Reviewing the Council’s Performance

The Annual Financial Report has the following sections:
» this review of the Council’s performance, which gives a background to its financial
performance;

+ an Annual Governance Statement showing how the Council meets set standar
when carrying out its responsibilities;

« areport from Grant Thornton, after they have reviewed the Council’s acco
» the Statement of Accounts — see below; and,
+ aglossary to explain any technical terms used in the report.

The Statement of Accounts

Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 202
supported by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

The Council’s core financial statem
their purpose.

Comprehensive Income & E
spending, income and chang
accordance with generall

page 28 — shows the movement on all the Council’s
increase or decrease in the Council’s net worth as a
received, and changes in the value of its assets.

summarises the Council’s financial position at 31 March each

year. It show \ at the Council owns) that the Council holds and its liabilities
(what the to other parties, and the Council’s reserves, separated into those

olicies page 32— sets out the policies the Council adopted for drawing up the
ccounting statements.

Page 64 10



Reviewing the Council’s Performance

Further Information

You can get more information about the accounts by emailing the Finance Department at
finance@swale.gov.uk. This document is on the Council’s website at:
https://www.swale.gov.uk/statement-of-accounts/

Philip Wilson CPFA
Date: 29 July 2021
Head of Finance and Procurement

Reviewing Performance

The Council’s Performance

The Council continues to monitor its performance against a range of ey performance
indicators and, where possible, to benchmark its performanece with thosé of other local
authorities. In addition to numerous indicators in use Withinspesjalist teams, Cabinet,
Scrutiny and the Strategic Management Team (SMT C
indicators on a regular basis. This increased fro '
reflecting changes of focus and balance across g

()
ok
(@)
o,
N
©
o
o
-~
§o}
(@)
-~
Q
S
(0]

en as a whole is broadly
. The combination of the new

these indicators once the crisis is over. The Council publishes a summary performance
report each month on its website at http:/Apww.swale.gov.uk/managing-performance/ .

The Council’s People

The Council has developed its values/to cribe clearly how the Council does things and

all employees should be aware e Councilexpects them to work. The Council has an
engagement plan to ensure that staff knptx where they fit in and the importance of their role
in delivering the priorities of th : [ i
approach to staff communig Y ich¥aye regular and made through a variety of

challenges in the futtixe. N hi

key themes to reer eV|sed priorities and the pOSSIb|e opportunities and
https://www.swale.gov.uk/workforce-strateqy-2019-t0-2022/ .

SMT reviews ev information on a quarterly basis, which includes recruitment,
[ ) er, equalities profile, and sickness information. This attention to

o pted several strands of action, for example, the age profile of the
¢ oot . .

Page 65 11



Reviewing the Council’s Performance

How the Council Manages Data

The Council has a responsibility to securely keep the personal data it holds. In 2020/21
there were 40 reported incidents which amounted to breaches of the Data Protection Ac
and 13 near misses. Each case is investigated fully before the Council’s Data Protecti
Officer decides on the appropriate response. In 2020/21 it was not necessary to repgiMo
the Information Commissioner. The decision in all cases was based on conclusion
reached by the Information Commissioner in previous years and demonstrated thati
taken effective and efficient action in minimising the impact of the breaches rep6r

How the Council Manages Risk

The risk management process is coordinated by Mid Kent Audit 3
through SMT and Informal Cabinet.

registers for all Council service areas. This exercise
including Heads of Service and unit managers. C
be routinely reviewed and updated.

The Council, like all authorities, has faced un

Risk information is regularly re
Committee receive an annual
last report was taken to Audlit
https://services.swale.govAik/me

t

ittee/on 10 March 2021 and can be found here
ielstDocuments.aspx?Cld=142&MId=2315&Ver=4

Mid Kent Audit continugs {0 pfoy¥ide~quidance, advice and works across the Council to
improve risk culture andhundeyrstariding of effective risk management.

Page 66 12



Annual Governance Statement

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

Scope of Responsibility

Swale Borough Council is responsible for ensuring that:
(i)  its business is conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards;
(i) public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for; and
(iii) public money is used economically, efficiently and effectively.

based upon the 2016 Society of Local Authority Chief Executiv
Managers (SOLACE) Framework ‘Delivering Good Governanc
There are no changes to the code for this year but the-Chartered\nstitute of Public

This Statement explains how Swale Boro(g as complied with the principles

of good governance and reviews the effegtive of these arrangements. It also

The May 2019 elections resulte ontrol of the Council passing to a five party
coalition comprising the Labou

ive role was covered by the Director of
munications and Customer Services and the

Page 67

13




Annual Governance Statement

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

The community leadership role was led by the Leader of the Council supported by the
Director of Regeneration. Whilst this role was ongoing throughout the period it was
most demanding in the pre- Christmas period when Swale had the largest number of
cases in the country as the Kent variant became identified.

All staff left the building on 13 March and staff continue to work primarily from e.
From the outset the IT technology of the Council supported this very well and t
previous decision to move all staff to work on laptops was highly beneficial, 4

around 20% of the Council’s total budget. 3
financial standing of the Council. The firs catio zovernment support was
very effectively for a greater share of
gcations were also made on a
needs basis and this has made a major difference™or this Council. The scale of
Government support has meant thatthe Covid related costs and loss of income have
been fully covered in 2020/21. as also been a significant funding contribution
for 2021/22 which meant that ¢
directly or via Kent County
have also been received f ang\trace and contain outbreak management.
Overall whilst the Council
Covid well.

e same applies to councillors. The impact of Covid on the
ond the lifting of lockdown.

e framework comprlses the systems and processes, and culture and
ich the Council is directed and controlled, and its activities through which
to, engages with and leads the community. It enables the Council to

e achievement of its strategic objectives, and to consider whether those

Page 68 14



Annual Governance Statement

3.2 The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to
manage risk to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve

policies, aims and objectives, and therefore can only provide reasonable, and not
absolute, assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on a
ongoing process designed to:

(i) identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of Council’s policies,
and objectives;

(i) evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impac the
be realised; and,
(iii) manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.
3.3 The governance framework has been in place at the Council for year d 31
ts.

March 2021, and up to the date of approval of the Statement of

4. The Council’s Governance Framework
4.1 A brief description of the key elements of the Council’s gover ramework is
described below.

Communicating the Council’s Vision

4.2

4.3

meeting quarterly.

4.4 The Council see esources efficiently and obtains value for money via a
number of arrangements. Mhese include:
(i) ancial plan and annual budget process that ensures that
es are directed to the Council’s priorities.

onitoring process which closely monitors expenditure and income
¢d monthly reporting to SMT and quarterly reporting to Cabinet and
ommittee.

Special Project Fund created by the new administration to fund public
projects and support the delivery of other administration priorities. This is
supplemented by the Improvement & Resilience Fund linked to the
delivery of administration priorities.

Page 69 15



Annual Governance Statement

(iv) A capital strategy again directed at administration priorities in particular
increasing the supply of affordable housing.

(v) Anannual review of fees and charges.

Member and Officer Working Arrangements

4.5 Roles and responsibilities for governance are defined and allocated so that
accountability for decisions made and actions taken are clear. The admj
has maintained the Cabinet system and the Cabinet consists of seve

4.6 The Council also appoints a number of committees to discharge™

4.7  The Constitution also includes both a Member and an Office
which describe and regulate the way in which members and
to work effectively together.

4.8 The Scrutiny Committee scrutinises decision-

decisions are taken. Under the corporg 3 aim of renewing local democracy,
[ evelopment and Review Committee

49 The Council’s Audit Committee g a remit consistent with those identified in the
' Practical Guidance for Local Authorities’. It
provides assurance to the Co CI| ontheeffectiveness of its governance

Committee regularly reviews the igternal audit work programme, the results of
internal audit work, and

410 A central role on
officers; the He
Officer.

ges is undertaken by the Council’s three statutory
jce, the Monitoring Officer and the Chief Financial

4.11 ead of Paid Service) is accountable for the delivery of the
work of the Council’s employees, and the work undertaken for

of partners and contractors who deliver a wide range of

graph 24 of schedule 5 to the Local Government Act 2000, requires the Council
designate one of its senior officers as the Monitoring Officer. The Head of Policy,
munications and Customer Services Mr Clifford is responsible for:

Page 70 16



Annual Governance Statement

(i)  Ensuring that the Council acts and operates within the law. He has a duty to
report to the whole Council if he believes any action or proposal has been or is
likely to be contrary to the rule of law.

(i)  Maintaining arrangements to support the Council’s functions and activities,
including regular reviews of the Council's Constitution.

(iii) Dealing with complaints against members under the Code of Conduct,
supporting the Council's Standards Committee, and helping to promote-g
maintain high standards of conduct by Council members, officers,
contractors.

(iv) Establishing and maintaining registers of interests, gifts and h
members and officers.

(v) Receiving reports and taking action under the Council's
Code, which supports whistleblowing by staff.

413 The Chief Financial Officer (CFO), as the Section 151 Off ointed under the
1972 Local Government Act, carried overall responsibility fo ipandial

CIPFA statement on the role of the Chief Fina
(2010).

4.14 The role of Head of Internal Audit is assighed to th
Councils and Ashford Borough Councih

internal audit service, including dra

by the Institute of Internal Au
to internal control” referenced

principles set out in/ ément on the Role of Head of Internal Audit
(2019).

embers’ Allowances has been set by the Council, having
Independent Panel made up of non-Councillors. The Council
ay Policy Statement” which provides transparency with regard

Page 71 17



Annual Governance Statement

Promoting Values and Upholding High Standards of Conduct and Behaviour

4.17 The Council has a Standards Committee to promote high standards of member
conduct. Elected members have to agree to follow a Code of Conduct to ensure JigK
standards in the way they undertake their duties.

4.18 Officer behaviour is governed by the Officer Code of Conduct. The Code hasxheen
and the link between that work and their private lives.

419 The Council takes fraud, corruption and maladministration seriously
established policies and processes which aim to prevent or deal wi
occurrences. These include:

(i)  An Anti-Fraud and Anti-Corruption Strategy.

(i) A Whistleblowing Policy.

(iii)  Various HR policies regarding discipline of staff involy
(iv) Various procurement policies.

(

v) A corporate complaints procedure exists to receive and regpond to any
complaints received.

4.20 Arrangements exist to ensure that members a

each meeting in which dis ions involve a matter in which a member has an
interest;

naking processes are clear, open and transparent. The
sets out how the Council operates and the processes for policy
ey as well as non-key executive decisions are published in

Page 72 18



Annual Governance Statement

4.23 The Council has a well embedded approach to the management of risk and this has
been fully updated to reflect the priorities of the new administration. The Audit
Committee maintains an oversight of the process.

Developing the Capacity and Capability of Officers and Members

4.24 The Council recognises that the success of its business is built upon the kno
expertise, and commitment of its workforce. Development and retention gf-
therefore remains a priority for the Council. There are well-established
appraisal and development processes for all staff.

4.25 The new Chief Executive launched an immediate review of the sen
structure. A new structure with two Directors and an additional ice/(time
limited for two years) has been through a consultation process
being recruited.

4.26 The cross-party Member Development Working Group take
approach to member development. It continues to operate
underpin the Member Development Charter.

Engagement with Local People and Other Stakeliolders\to Ensure Robust Public
Accountability

4.27 The Council engages with partners and st
ensure collaboration on strategic issues
for the benefit of the residents of Swal

old ough various partnerships to
joint resportsibility for working together

4.28 The Council also engages with the~noluntary, convnunity and business sectors,
working closely with Swale CVS and communicating through the Swale Community

4.29 In addition, the Council
engage with and inform

including:

e meetings with free public access to consultation documents and
aeting agendas, reports and minutes via the Council website.

nd distributing ‘Inside Swale’ magazine to 60,000 households every
provide a trusted source of Council news and information.

incil services and engage with stakeholders, responding to local peoples’
edmments, questions and concerns online.

Page 73 19




Annual Governance Statement

4.30

Outcomes and value for money

4.31

4.32

4.33

(v) Providing an ‘Ask the leader’ channel to enable any stakeholder the opportunity
to engage directly with the leadership, with all questions and responses openly
published on the Council website.

To date the requirements for social distancing has meant that the early rounds
Area Committee meetings have been conducted remotely. This will change on
as social distancing rules allow.

Much of this document is concerned with processes for governance,andNQrom

the year. The elimination of Revenue Support Grant is hig
Council such as Swale with both a low absolute level of Cou

important for Swale.
Given the highly constrained revenue budget t} tion has continued to use
one off funds to pump prime the achievement of their priprities.

Despite Covid dominating the Council’s
has been made across a range of ad

car‘once again good progress
priorities:

(i) Constitutional reform - Are
Committees agreed. Work will now take place on a move away from the
Cabinet system.

pirit of Sittingbourne project for Sittingbourne delivered.

An agreed way forward for the refurbishment of Swale House and the Masters
House.

Page 74 20



Annual Governance Statement

4.34 The 2021/22 budget position had looked extremely difficult and given the demands
on the Council from Covid there was no question of making significant savings. In
the end a combination of additional Government funding for Covid in 2021/22 an
some use of Reserves meant that a good balanced budget was achieved. It is
however questionable given the fiscal constraints on Government that they c
continue to support councils to the level they have to date. This means that r d
income from areas such as off street car parking are unlikely to be funded by
Government beyond the first quarter on 2021/22. The Council faces a

er
significant funding gap for 2022/23 and is unlikely to benefit from significa 2
Government financial support- this threatens both the delivery of cope business andg

administration priorities.

CIPFA Financial Management Code

4.35 In October 2019 CIPFA published their Financial Managepien

4.36 For the 2020/21 accounts the Council is requi

5. Review of Effectiveness

5.1 The Council annually reviews
the system of internal contrg

the work of internal audit, and by comments
er inspection agencies.

the governance environ
made by the external

5.2

external auditor’s opinion report on the Council’s financial statements, and
g’conclusion on whether the Council has put in place proper arrangements to
secure efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources (the Value for Money
conclusion).

i) The roles of the Council’s Statutory Officers.

Page 75 21



Annual Governance Statement

(viii) The corporate complaints procedure.

(ix) The anti-fraud and corruption and whistleblowing framework.

5.3

In the 2019/20 Annual Governance Statement three main areas for attention movi

forward were identified. The latest position on these is as follows:

Issue

Updated position ]

Delivery of the administration
priorities.

As set out in paragraph 4.33 above good

progress has been made. The pace of prggress
over the remaining two years of the

administration is a major challenge.

Moving from the response
phase to Coronavirus into the
recovery phase. This links very
strongly with the delivery of
administration priorities.

ains

=,

Again very much linked to progres
priorities.

Ensuring the financial viability
of the Council in light of the
increased costs and reduced
income due to the Coronavirus
pandemic and the lockdown
period.

A well managed response by membérs and
officers, plus extensive additional cial

support from Goverpment;kas meant that to

date the financial i vid has been

manageable.

Y

6. Significant Governance Issues

6.1  The main areas for member and
(i)  Delivery of a new senior
(i)  Wholesale review of thexcOns

constitution curren
public engagemen

(iii) More emphasi

(iv) Deliverin
budget:

Agreed:

Leader

agement structure.
OR, possibly with a view to moving to a

iscretionary services with a balanced sustainable

Page 76

ior management attention in the coming year are:

22




Auditor’s Report

Independent auditor’s report to the members of Swale Borough
Council
Grant Thornton will be carrying out an audit on these accounts and reporting to the Audi

N
s
o
A
A
@
S

Page 77 23



Statement of Responsibilities

The Council’s Responsibilities

The Council is required to:

» make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to
that one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affai
this Council, that officer is the Director of Resources;

e manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resg
safeguard its assets; and

» approve the Statement of Accounts.

The Head of Finance and Procurement’s Responsibilities

Accountancy/Local Authority (Scotland) Accounts Advisory Com
Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code).

In preparing this Statement of Accounts, | have:

o complied with the local authority Code;
o kept proper accounting records which
» taken reasonable steps for the preve

irregularities.

| confirm that the accounts present a tryé a
Council at the reporting date and its i
2021.

d fair view of the financial position of the
se and expenditure for the year ended 31 March

Philip Wilson CPFA Date: 29 July 2021
Head of Finance and Procure t

Certification of the Ch o Audit Committee

| confirm that the adoptiox

ocess for the 2020/21 Statement of Accounts has been
formally com ‘

Date:

Page 78 24



Explanatory Note to the Accounts: Expenditure and Funding Analysis —
Change in Spend Per Department from Reported Basis to Accounting Basis

2020/21

Service Departments Net

Expenditure Budget

Reported to Respon-

Cabinet  Capital Pension sibility Other
£000 £000 £000 £000 £00

Chief Executive 127 0 20 0 0
Policy, Communications & Customer Services 1,112 1 211 60
Democratic & Electoral Services 1,169 3 66 38
Director of Regeneration 161 0 24 0
Housing, Economy & Community Services 3,762 240 480 5 7
Planning 1,324 0 314 97 0
Commissioning, Environment & Leisure 8,148 (647) 316
Finance 760 86 140 0
Revenues & Benefits 127 0 257 0
Property 467 333 94 308
Licensing & Resilience Planning 24 2 39 0
Environmental Health 603 9 0 0
Information Technology 1,241 41 0 0
Internal Audit 129 0 0
Human Resources 323 0 0
Legal 348 0 B (50) 0
Corporate ltems 2,193 1536 (39) (17,752 171
Cost of Services 22,018 /15835 2,229 0 (16,737) 23,345
Financed by Council Tax, Business Rates (23,355
& Grants

(Surplus) in Year

General Fund Balance at 1 April 2020
(Surplus) in Year

2019/20 Approved Rollovers

General Fund Balance at 31 March 2021, > (4,484)

The local authority accounting year rins from 1) April to 31 March. Throughout the Accounts
figures in brackets represent irn oMNainus or negative figures.

nd for the year as reported to Cabinet. The middle

g mriade in order to report the Council’s expenditure on an
g column on the right, which then appears in the next
come & Expenditure Statement as the Cost of Services. The
Note 46.

the accounting standard IAS 19 rather than the actual payments
Fund; Budget Responsibility — the Council reports the expenditure
responsible for, but this allocates them out to the services they were
— taking out Corporate Items which are not in Comprehenswe Income &

Page 79 25



Explanatory Note to the Accounts: Expenditure and Funding Analysis —
Change in Spend Per Department from Reported Basis to Accounting Basis

The table below reconciles the Cost of Services to the Deficit on the Provision of Services on

the 2020/21 Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement:

Net

Expenditure Budget

2020/21 Reported to Respon-

Cabinet Capital Pension sibility

£000 £000 £000 £000

Cost of Services 22,018 15,835 2,229 0 6,
Other (Income) and Expenditure (8,223) (250) 1,297 (7,338)
Deficit on Provision of Services 13,795 15,585 3,526 3‘8959 16,007
Adjustments from Accounting Basis (15132)  (15,585) (3,526) <g\ 16,8 (17,344)
Surplus in Year (1,337) 0 0 (1,337)
26

Page 80




Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement —
Why the Council’s Resources Changed

2020/21  2020/21 2020/21 2019/20
Gross Gross Net t
Expenditure Income  Expenditure Expenditufe
£000 £000 £000
Chief Executive 147 0 147
Policy, Communications & Customer Services 1,409 (25) 1,384
Democratic Services 1,283 (7) 1,276 24
Director of Regeneration 328 (136)
Housing, Economy & Community Services 14,483 (9,974)
Planning 2,951 (1,216)
Commissioning, Environment & Leisure 11,762 (3,872)
Finance 1,790 (195)
Revenues & Benefits 40,277  (39,769)
Property 1,211 (93)
Licensing & Resilience Planning 339 (272)
Environmental Health 663 19
Information Technology 885
Internal Audit 129
Human Resources 350
Legal 1,953 (1,389)
Corporate Items 177 N0 171 164
Sub Total Cost of Services 80,13 (56,788) 23,345 27,345
Other Operating Expenditure
Drainage Board levy 847 847 817
Parish and Town Council precepts 1,57 0 1,974 1,367
Revaluation of Held for Sale assets 0 0 0 (11)
Disposal of assets (gains)/losses (Note 15) (503) 38 (236)
Write down of long-term leasing liability 0 0 (43)
Sub Total Other Operating Expenditure 2,962 (503) 2,459 1,894
Financing & Investment (Note 11) 17,617 (1,719) 15,898 371
Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income afid Expenditure
Council Tax ~ 0 (9,991) (9,991) (9,594)
Business Rates income 0 (15,170) (15,170) (23,118)
S31 Retail Relief Grant 0 (6,822) (6,822) 0
Tariff & levy Business Rates 12,365 0 12,365 12,161
Contribution paid to Busip€ss 2,494 0 2,494 2,587
Income received from B 0 (1,525) (1,525) (1,616)
Tax Income Guarantg (750) (750) 0
(115) (115) (113)
(4,234) (4,234) 0
(1,633) (1,633) (1,879)
(314) (314) (1,819)
(40,554) (25,699) (23,387)
(7,338) (21,122)
16,007 6,223
(7,858) 1,876
5,580 (671)
66 98
(2,212) 1,303
13,795 7,526

illion in the value of the Council’s assets and this is the total of the movement on
ce Sheet.

Page 81 27



Movement in Reserves Statement — The Change in the Council’s Resources

28 abed

T~
(O
U General Revenue Capital Capital Total Total
<\® Fund  Earmarked Total General Receipts Grants Usable  Unusable Council
Balance Reserves Fund Reserve Unapplied  Reserves  Reserves Reserves
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
(Note 18) (Note 16) (Note 17)
2019/20
(4,358) (17,831) (22,189) (1,365) (329) (23,883) 3,297 (20,586)
23 0 6,223 0 0 6,223 1,303 7,526
and (Income) 2019/20
Adjustments between accountingbas 71 0 (5,719) 6 (80) (5,793) 5,793 0
and funding basis (Note 45) 2019/20
Transfers (to)/from earmarked reserves 6 (516) 0 0 0 0 0 0
2019/20 (Note 18)
(Increase)/Decrease in 2019/20 1,020~ (518) O\, 504 6 (80) 430 7,096 7,526
Balance as at 31 March 2020 (3,338—" (18347 Y (21,685 (1,359) (409) (23,453) 10,393 (13,060)
20
Balance as at 31 March 2020 (3,338) (18,347) 5) (1,359) (409) (23,453) 10,393 (13,060)
Total Comprehensive Expenditure 16,007 0 007 0 0 16,007 (2,212) 13,795
and (Income) 2020/21
Adjustments between accounting basis (23,816) 0 (23,816 ,929) (49) (25,390) 25,390 0
and funding basis (Note 45) 2020/21
Transfers (to)/from earmarked reserves 6,663 (6,663) 0 0 0 0 0 0
2020/21 (Note 18) i
(Increase)/Decrease in 2020/21 (1,146) (6,663) (7,809) (1/,555) </ / /(35) (9,383) 23,178 13,795
Balance as at 31 March 2021 (4,484) (25,010) (29,494) (2,884), / /(458) . (32,836) 33,571 735
The Movement in Reserves Statement (MIRS) shows the movements in the year for the Coulcjl’s/us , (those that can be used for
future funding of services), and unusable reserves (there to deal with accounting entries only). "It begins By ing\the effect of the previous
statement — the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement, and then reverses out accounti the balance on each of

the reserves at the end of the financial year. In summary, there was an increase in the Council’s usa
a balance of £32.8 million. However this balance includes £6.5 million on the Collection Fund Def|C|t Res

illion resulting in
™an the Collection

28



Balance Sheet — The Council’s Resources

Total Property, Plant and Equipment

Assets Held for Sale
Heritage Assets
Investment Properties
Intangible Assets
Long-Term Investments
Long-Term Debtors

Total Long-Term Assets
Current Assets
Inventories

Short-Term Debtors

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Total Current Assets
Total Assets
Current Liabilities
Short-Term Creditors
Short-Term Loans

5106 Deferred Revenue Receipts

Revenue Grant Receipts
Provisions
Total Current Liabilities

in Advance

Total Assets less Current Liabilities

Long-Term Liabilities
Long-Term Creditors
Long-Term Loans

Liability Related to Defined Benefit

Pension Scheme

Capital Grants and Contributions
5106 Deferred Revenue Receipts

Provisions

Net Assets

36
Total Long-Term Liabilities ﬁ
/S

Note
24
29
27
28

42
38

39
40

3,469

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
£000 £000 £000 £
80,874 84/4
100 100
2,087 579
3,699

87
2,916

(85,543)
(735)

123,094

(38,366)

84,728

(71,668)

13,060

Page 83

29




\ Balance Sheet — The Council’s Resources

Financing:

Unusable Reserves

Revaluation Reserve

Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve
Capital Adjustment Account
Collection Fund Adjustment Account
Pensions Reserve

Pooled Fund Adjustment Account
Total Unusable Reserves

Total Usable Reserves

Total Reserves

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Note £000 £000 £000 £000
19 (24,394)
(6)
20 (16,180)
21 7422
23 66,646
22 83
33,571
MIRS page 28 (32,836)
735

liabilities recognised by the Council. The net assets of the Coungj
are matched by the reserves held by the Council.

liability.

The usable reserves are detailed on the Moveme,
to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation.

The movement in cash that has resulted in the

Caskh

£17.686m shown above is detailed in the Cash Flow Staiément.

As the Responsible Financial Officer f

accounts give a true and fair view o/

performance in advance of approva;L

Philip Wilson CPFA

Head of Finance a% t

0

ale Borough Council, | hereby certify that these
acil’s financial position and financial

Date: 29 July 2021

Page 84 30



Cash Flow Statement — Movement in Council’s Resources in Cash \

2020/21 2019/20

£000 £000 £000

Net (Deficit on the Provision of Services (see Comprehensive Income
. (16,007)

& Expenditure Statement)
Depreciation 1,402
Impairment & downward valuations 14,065
Movement in market value of investment property and upward revaluation (125)
Increase in creditors 9,282
(Increase)/Decrease in debtors (4,883)
Increase in debt impairment (16)
Movement in provisions 713
Movement in pension liability 2,039
Carrying amount of non-current assets and current assets held for sale, 1,58
sold or derecognised
Other movements 27. 108
Adjustment to Net Surplus on the Provision of Services for Non-Cash 24,086 12,145
Movements
Adjustment for items included in the net surplus on the provision of services 138,111 73,904
that are investing and financing activities
Net Cash Inflows from Operating Activities 146,190 79,826
Furchgse of property, plant and equipment, investment property ang 7,618) (18.281)
intangible assets
Movements of short-term investments 42,010) (77,360)
Other payments for investing activities (1,284) (330)
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment, j t 1,467 175
property and intangible assets
Other receipts from investing activities 13,151 3,260
Net Cash (Outflows) from Investing Activities (136,294) (92,536)
Short and long-term borrowing 30,000 20,000
Council tax and business rates adjustments (209) (934)
Repayment of short-term borrowing (40,000) (5,000)
Reduction of outstanding liabilities relating tofindnce leases 0 (140
Net Cash (Outflows)/Inflows from Finan¢ing Activities (10,209) 13,926
Net (Decrease)/Increase in Cash Equivalents (313) 1,216
Cash and cash equivalents as / 17,999 16,783
Cash and cash equivalents at31 17,686 17,999
Net (Decrease)/Increase inCa ivalents During Year (313) 1,216

reporting peridd and haw Council generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by
s operating, investing and financing activities.

The c

Page 85 31



Notes to the Core Financial Statements

Accounting Policies

1. Accounting Policies — General Principles

2019/685). The appropriate note details the critical judgements and es
future made when applying the Accounting Policies.

(a) Accounting Convention

The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts for
measurement is principally historic cost, modified by the revatuation of cértain categories of

> despite the impact of the coronavirus on local
tie going concern basis of reporting in the Code

The accounting concepts are supp® fundamental qualitative characteristics of
relevance, faithful representatiofl ahd matexjality and four enhancing qualitative characteristics
of comparability, verifiability, ti nderstandability. Where a particular accounting
treatment is prescribed by legi e treatment prevails even if it conflicts with one

g” In the unlikely event of this arising, a note to that
effect will be included i This Code only requires local authority financial

statements to disclos

Recognition
In accordance i 5, activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply
when cash p dde or received and relates to activity on all of the Council’s
functions in axchange transactions e.g. Council Tax and Business Rates. In

particulg

Page 86 32



Notes to the Core Financial Statements \

economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the
Council;

e supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed;

e expenses in relation to services received, including those from employees, are
recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather than when pay
are made;

non-exchange transactions and there can be no difference between th
payment dates;

contract;
e accruals are recognised where the value exceeds £1,000;

e where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but ca as not been
received or paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is\regorded in the
Balance Sheet. Where debts may not be settled, thebalance onNdebtors is written

ne that might not be

collected:;

e from car parking, which

~ , billed, rather than be
giadjusting for opening and closing balances
ox, the year. This policy also covers
ere billed and not apportioned

e exceptions are utility bills, insurance premig
are, in the main, charged or credited to t}
apportioned between years as the effeg
would not be material to the total of transaction
larger payments credited to the yeak in which the
between years; and,

e the annual review of the impaifment allowance for non-payment of debt will take into
account the prevailing economic clima

In 2020/21 £6.1m of income wa nisgd under IFRS 15 revenue contracts with customers
(£5.8m, 2019/20).

2. Accounting Policieg

(a) Capital Receig

diture Statement. The receipt is required to be credited to
erve and can only be used to finance capital expenditure or set

which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and are shown
eet at their nominal value. The Council has defined cash equivalents as

Page 87 33



Notes to the Core Financial Statements

(c) Employee Benefits — Costs

Termination benefits are amounts payable due to a decision by the Council to terminate an
officer's employment before the normal retirement date, or an officer’s decision to accept
voluntary redundancy. They are charged on an accruals basis to the appropriate servic
where applicable, to the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement at the earli
when the Council can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits or when the Co
recognises costs for a restructuring. Where termination benefits involve the enhance

calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement ii
Statement, appropriations are required to and from the Pensions Reserve t

with debits for the cash paid to the Kent Pension Fund and pensioner Wch amounts
payable but unpaid at the year-end.

(d) Employee Benefits — Post-Employment Benefits
The liabilities of the Kent Pension Fund attributable to the Council are ded in the Balance

Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method i.e. an assessment of the future
payments that will be made in relation to retirement ben s—earned to ddte by employees,

based on assumptions about mortality rates, employeg over rates, and projections of
projected earnings for current employees. The value ¢f t Pension Fund liabilities has
been assessed by Barnett Waddingham, an indeperdent agtuaries

e current service cos e increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned
, the revenue accounts of services for whom the employees

the net defined benefit liability — this is made up of two elements: (1)
pf the liabilities increases as a year’s worth of interest is added on; and (2)

d to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line of the
prehensive Income & Expenditure Statement;

Page 88 34



Notes to the Core Financial Statements

e return on plan assets — the funds that are built up to finance the pension payments are
the plan assets and this shows the return on them excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability. This is charged to the Pensions Reserve as
Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure;

that arise because events have not coincided with assumptions made at the las
actuarial valuation or because the actuaries have updated their assumptions:

the Kent Pension Fund;
» employer contributions — cash paid by the Council to the Kent R

» benefits paid — payments made directly to pensioners from the Ke Fund.
The negative balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve measuxe beneficial impact to
the General Fund of being required to account for retirement benefi e Dasis of cash

flows rather than as benefits are earned by employees.

(e) Estimation Techniques

Estimation techniques are the methods adopted by t
monetary amounts, corresponding to the maeasurement
gains, losses and changes in reserves. D
in the relevant note to the Accounts.
an explanation is also provided of the
period. For 2020/21 there is a se
coronavirus.

ses selected for assets, liabilities,
ails of where these have been used are contained
2@ change in an estimation technique is material,

Similarly, “other creditors™e
received.

arket Funds (MMFs) and are initially measured and carried in the Balance
t fair value; and

gtment in Church, Charities and Local Authorities (CCLA) Property Fund
carried at fair value at 31 March 2021.

Page 89 35



Notes to the Core Financial Statements

e amortised cost — this category includes fixed term deposits, call accounts and other
debtors and are initially measured at fair value and carried in the Balance Sheet at
their amortised cost.

The fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is generally the market price
Financial liabilities are measured in the Balance Sheet at amortised cost.

Impairment losses are calculated to reflect the expectatlon that the future cash flows ot

against the General Fund balance, is accounted for by a transfer to or
Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

(g) Government Grants and Other External Contributis

Government grants and third party contributions and donations are recognised as due to the

Council when there is reasonable assurance that:

e the Council will comply with the conditions attached Y9
e the grants or contributions will be received.

Amounts recognised as due to the Council are r
Expenditure Statement until conditions attachég/to 'tk
satisfied. Conditions are stipulations that specify that
potential embodied in the asset in the forp
consumed by the recipient as specified
be returned to the transferor.

ayments, and

edited To the Comprehensive Income &
grant or contribution have been

e future economic benefits or service
of the grant or contribution are required to be
future economic benefits or service potential must

Receipts defined as grants and cg hich conditions have not been satisfied are
included on the Balance Sheet When conditions are satisfied, grants specific to
a service will be credited aga|n @ expenditure line. General grants, e.g. Revenue

and disclosed separately j
Taxation and Non-Speci

ehensive Income & Expenditure Statement under
e. Where capital grants are credited to the

Page 90 36



\ Notes to the Core Financial Statements \
(i) Intangible Assets

These are non-current assets that do not have physical substance but are identifiable and a
controlled through custody or legal rights. An intangible asset is initially measured at cost
is not subject to revaluation. It is, however, subject to amortisation over its ‘useful’ life,

for computer software has been assessed as up to a maximum of seven years.

(j) Investment Property

when they become payable.

(I) Long-Term Liabilities

Long-Term Liabilities are those due beyond the fext
long-term liabilities due to be settled within 12 months™a
included within current liabilities.

months. The current portion of any
p the Balance Sheet date are

(m) Material ltems of Incom ense

cial year are classified as PPE. Assets which are not being
ich do not meet the criteria to be classified as either
Investment Asg . 3Se eld for Sale, are recorded as Surplus Assets.

evel’is charged to revenue in the year of acquisition.

Page 91 37



Notes to the Core Financial Statements

Each of the PPE asset classifications are revalued periodically in stages on the basis
recommended by CIPFA and in accordance with the Statements of Asset Valuation Principles
and Guidance Notes issued by the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS), as
follows:

» infrastructure, assets under construction and community assets are valued at hi§igri
cost, net of depreciation (where applicable), and

» other land and buildings, vehicles, plant, furniture, equipment and surplus asseis™s

valued at current value.

the economic environment prevailing for the service or function the asset ig
reporting date. The current value measurement bases include:

o Existing Use Value deflned in accordance W|th RICS Valuatlon =

exists;

o Depreciated Replacement Cost, for assets where there is no et ahd/or the asset
is specialised; and

» Fair Value, for surplus assets that are not being ysed-to deliver &
not meet the criteria to be classified as either |
Sale.

property being taken as that

y valuations are based on using

he highest volume and level of
he valuer will use one or several measurements
and/or factors to determine the value ofth€ property, some of which may be more significant

observable, e.g. an input based
available and assumptions are
separate hierarchies, which are

gNnputs used in valuations are classified into
ssessing the risk of the valuation being more
For building and land valuations, observable

gxcess of £1m and a residual life of over 25 years.

Page 92 38



Notes to the Core Financial Statements \

Impairment — assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that
an asset may be impaired. Where impairment losses are identified, they are charged against
the Revaluation Reserve up to the amount attributable to each specific asset held in that
reserve. Any excess of this amount is then chargeable to the Comprehensive Income &
Expenditure Statement. Any charges to the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statg

» newly acquired assets are not depreciated in the year of acquisition wk
not have a material effect upon the accounts, and

» depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method.

The standard useful lives for each category of asset are as follows:

[~

Asset Depreciation Methodology {

Land Depreciation is not normally provided TQjTe)eh\g;fd land
Infrastructure assets 20 to 50 years \ "/

IT equipment 3 to 7 years depending on the nature okthg asset
Non-IT furniture and 10 to 20 years v

equipment

Non-operational buildings

40 to 60 years dependihglon the\ndwldual asset

Operational buildings

Usually 50, althoug Uccordlng to the
individual asset /?1

30 to 50 years (dsuallyelating to car parks)

Up to 10 years dépendingan the type of vehicle

Accordlng/>whether it isNahd, building or equipment

Operational land
Vehicles
Community assets

as above

Provision for depreciation is made by/ajtocating the cost (or revalued amount) less estimated
residual value of the assets, as fair possikle dver their useful lives.

are depreciated separately.
impairment which is materia

Revaluation gains are a
current value depreciati

Page 93 39



Notes to the Core Financial Statements \

The concept of materiality is fundamental to the preparation of the financial statements. In the
public sector, as entities tend to be primarily ‘spending’ to provide public services rather than
profit making or asset holding, it is common practice to use gross revenue expenditure as t
appropriate financial reporting metric to apply materiality. However, for the purposes of
disclosure requirements and adherence to relevant accounting principles and statutory
requirements for non-current assets it is more appropriate to apply a materiality level 70 O
net non-current asset value which for 2020/21 is £1.6 million.

%

(o) Non-Current Assets — Charges to Revenue

Service revenue accounts and trading accounts are charged with the following a
record the cost of holding non-current assets during the year:

e depreciation attributable to the non-current assets used by the vant e;

e revaluation and impairment losses, where they are in excess of t lable in
the Revaluation Reserve; and,

bdsis determined by the Council
each year by Council.

(p) Provisions

Provisions are made where an event n place that gives the Council a legal or
constructive obligation that probably [
service potential, and a reliable esti

in the Balance Shee
(q) Reserves

ed difectly to a reserve, but to the service revenue account within the
% Expenditure Statement. This is then offset by a reserve

Page 94 40



Notes to the Core Financial Statements

(r) Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute (REFCUS)

Expenditure that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but which does not result in
the creation of a non-current asset has been charged to the relevant service in the
Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement. If the Council has decided to financ
expenditure from existing capital resources or by borrowing, then the cost is reversed of
the General Fund so there is no impact on the level of Council Tax, by a transfer in t
Movement in Reserves Statement.

(s) Shared Services

The Council maintains ‘shared service’ operations for a number of service

gnaiture
services is included within the Comprehensive Income & Expendit C@
(t) Value Added Tax (VAT)

VAT is accounted for separately and is included in incg 1d_expenditure accounts to the
extent that it is not recoverable. The Council’s partial ¢
annual basis.

3. Accounting Standards That Have Beenssued But Have Not Yet Been

Adopted

Accounting standards that have been iss but not yet afopted are:

to IFRS 3 Business Combinations;
e interest rate benchmark reform~ame tsto IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7; and,

e interest rate benchmark r — phase 2: Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7,
IFRS 4 and IFRS 16.

None of the above are exp
2021/22. The CIPFA/LA
the implementation of |
2022.

e definition of a business: amend

aterial effect on the Council’s finances in
ority Accounting Code Board has agreed to defer
so the effective date for implementation is now 1 April

pitity. Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions depends on a number of
dgements relating to the dlscount rate used, the rate at which salaries are

und assets. Kent Pension Fund have engaged a firm of consulting actuaries

Page 95 41



Notes to the Core Financial Statements

(Barnett Waddingham) who provide the Council with expert advice about the assumptions to
be applied, however, the interaction of these assumptions is complex. The report and
assumptions received from the actuary have adjusted for the increased rate of deaths
surrounding the coronavirus and its impact on overall mortality rates.

(b) Financial Instruments

The fair values used in the preparation of the Council accounts have not been affecte
material uncertainty.

(c) Impairment Allowance for Non-Payment of Debt

setting the rates for bad debt provisions, which are reflected in the

(d) Non-Current Assets

an unprecedented set of circumstance
relevant/sufficient market evidence 0

outlined movements less certai
valuations for these assets than

Furthermore, to reduce e
value assets of the Coun

ainty, the valuation date for investment and high
ed from 1 January to 31 March 2021.

5. Events after votrting Period

The Statement of Accoun
Procurement o

s authorised for issue by the Head of Finance and
Events taking place after this date are not reflected in the
. Where events taking place before this date have provided

ement, on 29 July 2021.

Page 96 42



\ Notes to the Core Financial Statements
Pay and Pensions

7. Officers’ Remuneration and Termination Benefits

The number of employees whose remuneration, excluding employer’s pension contributiofs;
was £50,000 or more, in bands of £5,000, was:

. 2020/21
Remuneration Band Number of Employees
£50,000 - £54,999
£55,000 - £59,999
£60,000 - £64,999
£70,000 - £74,999
£75,000 - £79,999
£80,000 - £84,999
£85,000 - £89,999
£95,000 - £99,999
£100,000 - £104,999
£105,000 - £109,999

Total

w —_
pxd[=T = R N e T =

payments, redundancy pay and pay in li
» the monetary value of any other benefi

total cost of the compulsory and

The numbers of exit packages with total cest per band a
other redundancies are set out in the tew/XeZelow:

. Numbet of Number of  Total Number of Total Cost of Exit
ﬁﬁglzsmag:fg:: Band Compuisory OtherDepartures Exit Packages by Packages in
Payments) Redu : Agreed Cost Band Each Band £

2020/21 20/21  2019/20 2020/21 2019/20  2020/21  2019/20
£0 -£20,000 1 1 1 2 1 16,594 6,689
£20,001 -£40,000 0 0 2 0 50,451 0
£100,001 - £150,000 1/> 0 0 1 0 103,112 0
Total \/4/ 7, )o 1 1 5 1 170,157 6,689
Total paid to employee 93,057 6,689
Total paid to KCC for contracte ts for pension scheme 77,100 0
Total 170,157 6,689

=
&

Page 97 43



\ Notes to the Core Financial Statements

Senior Officers whose emoluments/salary is between £50,000 and £150,000 per year.

2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 2019120

Post holder Information Salary, Fees & Pension Total I
(Post title) Allowances Contributions Remuneration Remupera

Point £000 £000 £000 £000
Chief Executive 1 27 9 36 0 b
Chief Executive 2 20 8 28 42
Director of Regeneration 103 33 136
Policy & Performance Manager 3 81 26 ‘ 106
Head of Legal Services 4 88 27 1 112
Chief Financial Officer 5 59 0 14
Head of Development Services 84 27 11 108
Head of Housing, Economy and 84 27 105
Community Services
Head of Commissioning, 82 26 P8 101
Environment & Leisure
Chief Executive Thames Gateway 6 50 0 50 83
Kent Partnership
Total 678 / _— 183 861 901

Point 1: Post holder was appointed in January 2021

Point 2: Post holder was on sick leave for 2019 S passed away in May 2020.
The ‘Salary, Fees & Allowances’ relates tq_outs g holiday pay.

Point 3: ‘Salary, Fees & Allowances’ includés

Point 4: Includes market supplement a ileage allowance;

Point 5: Post holder was appointed J ry 2020. Previously the Chief Financial Officer
worked across both Swalg and was directly employed by the latter.

Point 6: Post holder left mid 20 age allowance, outstanding holiday pay

and honorarium. The
the Thames Gatewa
2021.

8. Members’ Allow e;/>

w 2020/21 2019/20
£000 £000
Basic allowance 255 242
Special responsibility allowanc 163 145
Members’ travel isten allowance 9 15
Total /) 427 402
The Mem Il ces Scheme can be inspected on the Council website
http@ o\v} members-allowances/.
44

Page 98



Notes to the Core Financial Statements

9.

a)

Defined Benefit Pension Scheme

Nature of Benefits of Defined Benefit Pension Schemes

The Council is a member of the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) which ig
national scheme that is administered locally on its behalf by KCC — all employees
the right to join the scheme. This is a funded defined benefit career average sala

sets the employer contribution rate, currently 18.5%, plus an apnual fixe
Regulatory Framework of Defined Benefit Pension Schemes

The Kent Pension Fund is operated under the regulatory framewotk or the LGPS and the
governance of the scheme is the responsibility of the Superannuatig’ Committee of KCC.
This committee is responsible for setting investment sirategyy appointing professional
fund managers, carrying out regular reviews, mony ov stments, monitoring the
administration of the Pension Fund and determjning Rensio

employer admission arrangements. The comy ists of 12 members with voting
rights (nine from KCC and three from distri

changes to the scheme, structurd
from the scheme), changes to inftaii

ave been made in the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement and the
rieyal Fund balance via the Movement in Reserves Statement:

Page 99 45



Notes to the Core Financial Statements \

2020/21 2019/20
£000 £000
Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement
Cost of Services comprising:
Current service cost 3,726 7
Administration expenses 61

Net interest on the net defined benefit liability 1,297 <\1 341
Total Post-Employment Benefits Charged to the Deficit on the 5,084
Provision of Services
Post-Employment Benefits Charged to Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure:

Return on plan assets in excess of interest 20 726 148
Change in demographic assumptions ,849)
Experience loss on defined benefit obligation 1 88 1,169
Change in financial assumptions 46 (10,237)
Other actuarial losses 2,098
Total Re-Measurements Recognised in Other Comprehensive 5,5 (671)
Income and Expenditure \
Total Post-Employment Benefits Charged to the Comprehensive  \ \71),,664.7 4,510
Income & Expenditure Statement \
2019/20
£000
Movement in Reserves Statement
Reduction of charges made to the deficit on the Provisio (2,331)
for post-employment benefits to equal actual payment
with the Code
Employers’ Contributions Payable to the Scheme 3,045 2,850
Actual Return on Scheme Assets less Intere$/> 20,726 (8,148)

f) Pension Assets and Liabilities Recognisethin the Balance Sheet

The amounts included in the ce Sheebérising from the Council’s obligation in
respect of its defined benefiis plans afe\as follows:

\\\_-y 2020/21 2019/20
£000 £000

Present value of the defined 158,586 130,433
Fair value of plan assets (94,577) (74,045)
Sub Total 64,009 56,388
Present value of unfunded obligation 2,637 2,639
Net Liability in Balance Sheet 66,646 59,027

g

0

Page 100 46



Notes to the Core Financial Statements \

g) Reconciliation of the Movements in the Fair Value of Scheme (Plan) Assets and Liabilities
(Defined Benefit Obligation)

The Pensions Reserve figure in the Balance Sheet consists of the total assets plus
liabilities detailed below:

Reconciliation of present value of the scheme liabilities 20*2:,0433
Opening balance as at 1 April - defined benefit obligation (133,072)
Current service cost (3,596)
Past service cost including McCloud / Sargeant judgements (see Note ) (130
Interest cost (2,
Contributions by scheme participants (5
Changes in financial assumptions 746)
Experience loss on defined benefit obligation
Changes in demographic assumptions 1,
Benefits paid including unfunded pension payments
Closing balance at as 31 March - defined benefit obligation N\ \(181,223)7 (133,072)
\%

I . 0/21 2019/20
Reconciliation of fair value of the scheme assets 000 £000
Opening balance as at 1 April - fair value of scheme assets 74,045 83,198
Interest on assets 1,310 1,988
Return on assets less interest 20, 726 (8,148)
Other actuarial losses (2,098)
Administration expenses ) (48)
Employer contributions 3, 045 2,850
Contributions by scheme participants 588 561
Benefits paid including unfunded pension pay (5,076) (4,258)
Closing balance as at 31 March - fair value ;ﬂ};{Z\eme assets 94,577 74,045

h) Pension Fund Assets

The Pension Fund’s assets Corisist of the following categories, by proportion of the total
assets held: jr‘}
/N
March 2071

31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2020

£000 % £000 %
Equity investments 60,941 64 45,588 62
Gilts 562 1 576 1
Bonds 11,819 13 9,659 13
Property 9,795 10 10,083 14
Cash 4,631 5 1,880 2
Absolute retu f 6,829 7 6,259 8
Total 94,577 100 74,045 100

W

Page 101 47




\ Notes to the Core Financial Statements \
i) Basis for Estimating Assets and Liabilities

Estimates of the liability are based on the rolled forward value of the employer’s liabilitie
calculated for the triennial valuation of the scheme as at 31 March 2019, allowing for t
different assumptions required under IAS 19.

31 March 2021 31
Mortality assumptions:
Longevity at 65 if retiring today:
Men
Women
Longevity at 65 if retiring in 20 years:
Men
Women

21.6 years

Rate of inflation (Retail Price Index (RPI) increases)

Rate of inflation (Consumer Price Index (CPI) Increases)

Rate of increase in salaries

Rate of increase in pensions

Rate of discounting scheme liabilities

Take-up option to convert annual pension into retirement lump sum

The return on the Fund (on a bid value to bid valu
estimated to be 30.01% (-7% for the year 31 Marc

set out in the table above. The sensitivity
reasonably possible changes of the assu §
period and assumes for each change that the assumption analysed changes while all the
other assumptions remain constant. estimations in the sensitivity analysis have
followed the accounting policies foy'thésscheme, i.e. on an actuarial basis using the
projected unit credit method.

Uncertainty 4 Sensitivity Analysis
£000 £000 £000
Adjustment to discount rate +0.1% 0.0% -0.1%
Present value of total obligati 158,248 161,223 164,256
Projected service cost 4,026 4,160 4,298
+0.1% 0.0% -0.1%
161,567 161,223 160,881
4,162 4,160 4,158
+0.1% 0.0% -0.1%
163,885 161,223 158,610
4,296 4,160 4,027
2 +1 Year None -1 Year
ligation 168,907 161,223 153,912
4,336 4,160 3,990

Page 102 48



\ Notes to the Core Financial Statements \
j) Funding and Investment Strategy

KCC as administering authority for the Kent Pension Fund maintains a Funding and
Investment Strategy as required by the pensions and (where relevant) investment
regulations. The funding objectives are to ensure the long-term solvency of the Fun
ensure that sufficient funds are available to meet all benefits as they fall due for pa n

sufficient liquidity to meet the Fund’s forecast cash flows. The Funding
Strategy is reviewed annually or more frequently if necessary.

k) Impact of Pension Fund on Council’s Cash Flows

An objective of the scheme is to keep employers’ contributions
possible and funding levels are monitored on an annual basis. 4nd’is valued once
every three years and the latest valuation was at 31 March 2019 which disclosed a net
deficit of £15.5m on Swale Borough Council’s share of the fund, a reduction from the
2016 valuation deficit of £20.1m.

The movement in financial assumptions is due to
inflation forecasts.

[) Accounting for the McCloud and

An allowance was made in {
On 16 July 2020, the Gover

Page 103 49



\ Notes to the Core Financial Statements

Day to Day Spending — Revenue

10. Expenditure and Income Analysed by Nature
The Council’s expenditure and income is analysed as follows:

2020/21
Net
Expenditure

Benefit payments

Employee costs

Business rates paid to Government and pool
Other service expenses

Major contracts

Parish precepts

Drainage board levy

Trading undertakings (losses)

Investment properties

Other items

Total Expenditure
Benefitincome (Note 13)
Business rates income
S13 Retail relief grant

Tax income guarantee (S13) @
Fees, charges and other service income

Council tax

New homes bonus

Trading undertakings (gains) g

Revenue support grant

Coronavirus LA support grant

Grant income credited to cost of services (
Other grants and contributions

Other items
Total (Income) (99,562) (90,547)
Deficit on Provision of Serwce,s\ 16,007 6,223
The loss on trading unde result of a change in the valuation of an asset.
11. Financing an9\ hcome and Expenditure
2020/21 2019/20
Net Net
Expenditure  Expenditure
£000 £000
204 214
1,297 1,341
(167) (317)
14,831 (656)
— investment properties (Note 28) (163) (211)
o investment properties and changes in fair value (Note (125) (109)
ejt0sses gn financial assets through profit and loss (Note 42) 21 109
otal” ) 15,898 371

The/\l?gs/on trading undertakings is as a result of a change in the valuation of an asset.

Page 104 50



\ Notes to the Core Financial Statements \
12. Shared Services

The Council participates in a number of shared service arrangements which are included in t
Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement and which are detailed below:

2020/21 2020/21 2020/21  2020/21 2020/21
Expenditure Income from Expenditure  Income Net
on Partners Partners Other Other  Expenditure
£000 £000 £000 £000

Environmental Health 531 0 133
Information Technology 550 0 735
Human Resources 222 0 94
Planning Support 169 0 27
Internal Audit 129 0 0
Parking 152 (21) 1,128
Building Control 63 0 3
Local Land Charges 42 0 6
Fraud Investigation 16 0 0
Legal 0 (1,234) 1,953
Debt Recovery 0 0 —O0~_ (23) (23) (142)
Total 1,874 (1,255) / #4079~ (1,688) 3,010 1,424
In 2020/21 the Council contributed £53,696.05 toward s@ apital expenditure
(£52,869, 2019/20). The Council has accrued itsfuriding.share 1o Maidstone Borough

Council as revenue expenditure funded from capitalwnder statute. The Coronavirus
pandemic has resulted a significant loss in thé\parking net income and expenditure.

13. Grant Income

Grants Credited to Taxation an ecific Grant Income

& Expenditure Statement.

Page 105 51



\ Notes to the Core Financial Statements \
Grants Credited to Services

. 2020/21
Grant Area Provider £000
Housing benefit grant Department for Work & Pensions (36,510)
Coronavirus Additional Restrictions Department for Business, Energy (2,591)
Business Grants and Industrial Strategy
Coronavirus Business Support Grants ~ Department for Business, Energy (1,501)
and Industrial Strategy
Coronavirus S13A Council Tax Ministry for Housing, Communities 0

1
Coronavirus Revenue Grants - other Various Contributors ) 0
Queenborough & Rushenden Homes and Communities Agency 6) 0
Klondyke land improvement funded by
Housing Infrastructure Fund (HIF)

839) (1,530)

(1,
Hardship Grant and Local Government
Coronavirus - supporting public sector ~ National Leisure Recovery Fund ( 0
leisure centres
Coronavirus - emergency assistance Kent County Council 0
and winter scheme grants
1,
(

Housing repair grants — disabled
facilities

Homelessness grant (678) (276)
Discretionary housing payment (480) (334)
Housing benefit admin subsidy (400) (400)
Rough Sleeper Initiative (351) (151)
Localising council tax support (215) (163)
administration subsidy grant
Sittingbourne Town Centre road works (130) (64)
Implementing welfare reform changes (114) (151)
Open spaces and play areas - (101) (11)
commuted sums
Sittingbourne High Street F (13) (40)
Other grants (643) (399)
(48,051) (40,182)
N 2020/21 2019/20
£000 £000
Fees payable for'external audit service 70 58

Fees payakle forthe certification of grant claims and returns 31 28
@J\ 101 86

Page 106 52



Notes to the Core Financial Statements

15. Gains and Losses on Disposal of Non-Current Assets

Property valued at £1,582,350 was disposed of in 2020/21. A total net loss of £37,880 w
incurred for 2020/21 for all disposed assets (net gain of £235,980 in 2019/20). No inve
assets were disposed of in 2020/21 (with no disposals of investment assets in 2019/20);

shown within Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure in the Compe €
Income & Expenditure Statement.

Council Resources — Reserves

16. Usable Capital Receipts Reserve

In 2020/21 the Council received £1.424m from the sal
£1.045m from the sale of land for housing development
£0.378m from the sale of property in Sittingbourn%

=

offand and property. This included
8 er \Cliffs, Minster, and
S g town centre regeneration.

2020/21 2019/20

£000 £000
Balance as at 1 April (1,359) (1,365)
Capital receipts in year from sale of assets (1,466) (278)
Capital receipts in year from repayment of gra d mortgages (83) (14)

Capital receipts applied during the year — firtan ang-term assets 24 298
Balance as at 31 March Yo (2,884) (1,359)

guld otherwise require repayment of the monies but
expenditure. The balance at 31 March 2021 of
hs as to the capital expenditure against which it can be

This note~se out@a ounts set aside from the General Fund to earmarked reserves to

reserves toyneet General Fund expenditure in 2020/21 and 2019/20.

Page 107 53



Notes to the Core Financial Statements

Balance Transfers Transfers Balance Transfers Transfers Balance
31 March out in 31 March out in 31 March
2019  2019/20  2019/20 2020  2020/21  2020/21 1
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 '000
Business Rates Volatility (4,935) 1,438 (446) (3,943) 1,446 (330) 8
North Kent Housing & (846) 0 (860) (1,706) 33
Commercial Growth
Business Rates
Revenue and Benefits (630) 0 (179) (809)
Preceptors Council Tax (817) 0 (254) (1,071)
Support
Kent Pool Economic (2,065) 1,515 (776) (1,326)
Development Business
Rates
Special Project Fund 0 171 (1,135) (964) (1,055)
Improvement and (1,000)
Resilience Fund
Town Centres / High (758)
Streets Fund
Building Maintenance (563)
Repairs & Renewals (455)
Communities Fund (411)
STC Retail Park (379)
Parking (279)
Wheeled Bins (279)
Performance (271)
Commuted Sums (266)
Stay Put Fund (238)
Heritage Strategy (226)
Visitor Economic (179)
Framework
Financial Services (179)
Local Loan Fund (175)
Refuse and Recycling (172)
Local Development (167)
Framework
STC Bourne Place (165)
Regeneration (152) (152)
Housing 7) 14 (30) (153) 12 (5) (146)
(77) 0 (24) (101) 0 (25) (126)
(89) 44 (62) (107) 58 (52) (101)
0 0 0 0 0 (94) (94)
unds (88) 5 0 (83) 0 0 (83)
%F cilities (85) 0 0 (85) 6 0 (79)
Grants (Reyenue)
Cy 54

Page 108




Notes to the Core Financial Statements

Balance Transfers Transfers Balance Transfers Transfers Balance
31 March out in 31 March out in 31 March
2019  2019/20  2019/20 2020  2020/21  2020/21 1
£'000 £000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000 '000
Milton Creek Access (75) 0 0 (75) 0 0 (751
Road
HR Shared Services (42) 3 (39) (74) 0 0 (74)
General Democratic 0 0 (37) (37) 0 0
Tree Survey and Works (63) 0 0 (63) 0
in Closed Churchyards
Cemeteries (60) 0 0 (60) 0 (60)
Faversham Creek (60) 0 0 (60) 0 0 (60)
Footpath
Food and Health Safety (12) 0 (48) (60) (60)
ICT Reserve (55) 0 0 (55) 0 0 (55)
Licensing (21) 10 (43) (54) 0 (54)
Pension & Redundancy (86) 7 (15) (94) 0 (128) (52)
Closed Churchyards (48) 0 (4) (52) \ 0 (52)
and War Memorials
Sheppey Lower Road 0 200 (250) 50 0 0 (50)
Improvements
CCTV Monitoring 0 0 0 0 (50) (50)
Control Centre Reserve
General Reserve (2,186) 1,520 (666) 844 0 178
Collection Fund Deficit 0 0 0 0 0 (6,546) (6,546)
Reserve
Collection Fund Tax 0 0 0 0 0 (750) (750)
Income Guarantee (TIG)
Miscellaneous (854) 6 (341) (934) 155 (176) (955)
Total (17,751) ~ 67135 \(6/?31) (18,347) 5593  (12,256)  (25,010)
[/~
Business Rates Volatility | To assist gfw panaging the volatility of business rate income as a result of
busingss rate localisation.

North Kent Housing &
Commercial Growth
Business Rates

4

Ungér the Kent-Busine$s Rates 2018/19 Pilot there was to be an allocation of funds

jng & Commercial Growth Business Rates which was allocated among

rities for each cluster to determine the final allocation. SBC is in the

rthKent” cjdster. Cabinet on 16/12/2020 agreed that this fund was to be used to

\st»be | Housing Company, for set up costs and future investment, including
possible\investment in Sheppey. Minute 350/12/2020.

Revenues and/BeﬁE!Tti_

avingg/made in the Revenues and Benefits section, including unspent grants were

/) “ramsférred to this reserve. This is used to cover the shortfall in Government grant.
Preceptors u?rsi}/r@ ?id by KCC, Police and Fire to reflect the costs of Council Tax support localisation.
Support /N
Kent PooMEco TL\/ This fund has been established as a result of the Council joining the Kent Business

SS

Rates Pool. Itis to fund economic development as agreed by the Council and KCC.
As agreed by Cabinet on 16/12/2020 the balance on this reserve is to be retained for

potential top ups and for new initiatives or pressures. Minute 350/12/2020.

Page 109 55




Notes to the Core Financial Statements \

Special Project Fund

The Cabinet meeting 10 July 2019 proposal to set up a Special Projects Fund was
agreed. The commitment is to allocate £1m per annum from accumulated business

rate reserves to the funds. The fund is being used to deliver tangible projects for th
residents of the borough making the public spaces cleaner and better presented/<
Minute 122/07/2019.

Improvement and
Resilience Fund

The Cabinet meeting on 16 Dec 2020 agreed the transfer of £1m from the ﬁt,F‘oo\l\
Economic Development Business Rates Fund to the “Improvement and ReSilience
Fund”. Minute 350/12/2020.

Town Centres/ High
Street Fund.

The Cabinet meeting 16 December 2020 agreed that £800k of shm/e;r}m@s\ateg

will be now allocated to Town Centres. Minute 350/12/2020.

Building Maintenance

To meet items of backlog building maintenance as identified in the Squnsi’s mediym-
term maintenance plan as well as urgent or unexpected items {Eash year theregerve
is topped up by any underspend on the building maintenance reverue bud

Repairs & Renewals

Regular contributions are made to this fund from the Genéraitund fora number of
services to fund the future cost of significant items of expenditure:

Communities Fund

This is to support the Council’s Localism Agenda.

STC Retail Park

/\ \/
This reserve is for the accounting adjustment bet\Néin@m/ioﬁncome received

and the value included in the accounts.

Parking Any surplus from on-street parking is transferred to the 'nb{anced on-street parking
account under Section 55 of the Road Traffic Act 1984.

Wheeled Bins To fund the new wheeled bins purchasesand replacements.

Performance To improve overall performance. Offigers can Subnit a bidding list of proposals.

Commuted Sums To fund play area and open space maintenance i) future years.

Stay Put Fund To support the Council’s SWS advice, support and help to the
elderly and disabled, who are gwrer occupi private tenants and who need
practical assistance to repajir, adapt orimprove their homes.

Heritage Strategy The Cabinet meeting 18 Decémber 2Q19agreed to the transfer of £250,000 from the
Kent Pool Economic Development Reserve to the Heritage Strategy. Minute
402/12/2019. /7

Visitor Economic The Cabinet meejiig.7 2018 agreed that the Visitor Economy Framework 2018-

Framework 2023 be adopted-and that funding of £250,000 from the shared business rates pool

with Kent Co uncil bewseéd to contribute to the delivery of the framework.
Minute 4750 8. A

Financial Services

To fund cantinuous system developments for the financial systems, and meeting the
costs of the\professiopal advice and staff development on accounting, taxation,

pa ts, etc:

Local Loan Fund

Wolu ary, community or not-for-profit organisations and town and parish
councifs j Swél&o enable management and delivery of local services and facilities.

Refuse and Recycling {|

fﬁhd\ontg{(}'r@ review of additional roads from new developments to be added on to
Biffaxson and services including clinical, bulky and weekly collections.

Local Development

Framework 7 ™\

An?m:niz‘rspend or overspend on this service on the General Fund will be transferred
is fund and used solely to fund Local Development Framework associated work.

STC Boumeg(a I
/\

istéserve is for the accounting adjustment between the value of income received
and the value included in the accounts.

Regeneratien Yo fund regeneration projects in the Borough. Officers can submit bids to this reserve.
Housing To fund the homelessness service in future years.
EnvirenmentaNuitiatives | Income from Fixed Penalty notices used to support various environmental initiatives. It
N} is a requirement of the legislation that any money generated is used to create a cleaner
> and greener environment.
EleCleratReqistration | To fund one-off costs of Local Authority elections in future years.

Page 110 56



Notes to the Core Financial Statements \

Coronavirus - S13A
Council Tax Hardship
Fund

This represents the balance remaining on the S13A Council Tax Hardship Fund.
According to MHCLG and CIPFA guidance, the Council must spend this in the
provision of support to vulnerable households. /N

Insurance Funds

The purpose of the reserve is to fund Insurance claims. / /

Disabled Facilities
Grants (Revenue)

This reserve is related to the Better Care Fund (BCF) incorporating Disabled Facili i(%\
Grants (DFG). Funding is from the Government and administered via KCC.

balance of the BCF to carry over as agreed by Strategic Management TeaW
for new or committed work to support the DFG service.

Milton Creek Access
Road

Reserve will be used for new access road to Milton Country Park a//( \1\\>
security around the car park to stop unauthorised encampments. /uea\

HR Shared Services

This reserve is funded from an underspend on the MKS HR seryicax_

General Democratic

This reserve is funded from an underspend on members’ allow@nces,

Tree Survey and Works
in Closed Churchyards

Funding required to appoint consultants to undertake a

re conwwross
the Council’s Green Spaces and to fund a rolling progran%\el tree work

Cemeteries

Used to cover the costs of purchasing an electronic burial

Was part of the
transformation review recommendations and furthe{ew% e new lwade

burial site.

Faversham Creek
Footpath

Footpath in Faversham - part of the regeneration of %KWW Creek.

Food and Health Safety

To meet Council Key Performance Indicators as well as statitory duties.

Information and
Communication
Technology (ICT)
Reserve

This will be used to fund IT related exp uture years. Any surplus or deficit

on ICT expenditure on software and tr nsferred to this fund.

Licensing

Any surplus or deficit from L|c |s transferred to the ring-fenced Licensing account
under Local Government ( 9eﬂqne s Provisions) Act 1982.

Pension & Redundancy

To meet the cost of reIeasub/the P\%und benefits to staff who have taken early
retirement and to fund all other redundahey costs.

Closed Churchyards This reserve is to f})ﬂ <ntinuing substantial works at St Marys closed churchyard.

and War Memorials R

Sheppey Lower Road The Cabinet meéting 1 ber 2019 agreed to £250k of the shared Kent Pool

Improvements Economlc D ent Re being allocated to the Sheppey Lower Road
improvem |nute/402/12/201 9.

CCTV Monitoring The capltw CCTV system (£250k) was going to be funded from 5 years

Control Centre Reserve | of £50kpenyearrevenug savings on running costs. This funding was approved as part
of t 202 ital udget.

General Reserve

Thedsetf this reserve is subject to the approval of Members.

Collection Fund Deficit
Reserve

4

is reserve igfurided by Government grants to be fully used to offset the business
e collectidn fund deficit as a result of increased business rate reliefs announced by

NGov n response to the coronavirus pandemic.

Collection Fund Tax
Income Guaranje€ )

rnment announced, as part of a consultative policy paper a scheme to fund

f irecoverable losses in council tax and business rates. This is known as the
uarantee Scheme Grant. The methodology differs between council tax and
business rates. These will be used to help fund the Council’s share of the deficit on the
ollection fund for 2020/21 in future years and therefore they have been transferred to
areserve.

This is made up of the earmarked reserves that are less than £50,000. A full list of
these reserves is available upon request.

@Q’/

Page 111 57



Notes to the Core Financial Statements \

19. Revaluation Reserve

This reserve contains the gains made by the Council arising from increases in the value of i
property, plant and equipment assets, heritage assets and frozen gains re investment ass
(incurred prior to the assets being classified as investment assets).

This year the gains also include £1,464,300 arising from the addition of the Civic Cloe
heritage assets which were not previously recognised on the Balance Sheet. £1,250,00
this total is relative to the Sheerness Clock and Clock Tower, a grade |l listed stru
1902 of cast iron construction.

The balance is reduced when assets with accumulated gains are:

e revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost;
» used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed th
» disposed of and the gains are realised.

reserve was created. Accumulated gains arising before that date wexe consolidated into the

balance on the Capital Adjustment Account.
RN
2020/21 2019/20
Q £000 £000
(17,096) (19,280)

(9,779) (2,952)
ed to the deficit 1,921 4,829

Balance as at 1 April
(Upward) revaluation of assets

Downward revaluation of assets and impairment losseg
on the provision of services in the Comprehensive Income & Expe

Statement
Sub Total (7,858) 1,877
Write down re gains derived from depreciatigh gifferens 316 307
costs and current value
Write down of accumulated gains on djsp 244 0
Balance as at 31 March (24,394) (17,096)
20. Capital Adjustme
The Capital Adjustme At absdrbs the timing differences arising from the different

aharicement of those assets under statutory provisions. It is
tion/enhancement as depreciation, revaluation and impairment
harged to the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure

with the amounts set aside to finance the costs of

. The account also contains accumulated gains/losses on assets

acquisition, construction
debited with the cost of
losses and a
Statement.

Page 112 o8



Notes to the Core Financial Statements

2020/21 2019/20

£000 £000

Balance as at 1 April (31,196) (34,421) )
Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure debited or credited to the <
Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement:

Depreciation of tangible non-current assets 1,402 1339

Amortisation of intangible assets 27

Write down Revenue Expenditure Funded by Capital under Statute (REFCUS) 2,528 , >

(Note 30)

Revaluation losses taken to Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement 15,96 60

— other assets

Revaluation losses taken to Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement 14

— investment assets

Revaluation gains and reversal of prior losses taken to Comprehensive Income 230) (376)

& Expenditure Statement — other assets

Revaluation gains taken to Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Stater ( (123)
— investment assets

Revaluation gains taken to Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Stateme 0 (11)
— held for sale assets

Impairment losses / reversal of prior impairment losses taken to (1,665) 1,665

Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement — other asse

Disposal & derecognition of assets — write out of notional net 1,682 19
Write down of Revaluation Reserve:

Write down of Revaluation Reserve depreciation (gain (316) (307)

Write down of Revaluation Reserve accumulated gains ondisposed assets (244) 0

(Note 19)

Capital financing applied in the year:

Capital financing — capital receipts (Note 32 ahdNote 16) (24) (298)

| contributions (Note 32) (2,308) (3,098)

(832) (873)

(27) 0

(778) (634)

66 98

(16,180)  (31,196)

i8ing from the recognition of council tax and business rates
Income & Expenditure Statement as it falls due from council

r he overall Collection Fund deficit and the surplus for renewable energy
retained by~thie Council. The total movement in 2020/21 was a movement from
surplus todefieit 0££7,820,034 (£82,314 increase in surplus in 2019/20).

1/22 from government grants received which are currently being held in the
und Deficit Reserve.

Page 113 59



Notes to the Core Financial Statements \

22. Pooled Fund Adjustment Account

The movement in year of £20,884 represents the loss in value of the CCLA Property Fund.
The fair value is based on public price quotations in an active market for this financial
instrument and without this investment counting as capital expenditure.

23. Pensions Reserve

This Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements fo

Expenditure Statement as the benefits are earned by employees. Howevey
arrangements require benefits earned to be financed as the Council makes

Page 114 60



Notes to the Core Financial Statements

Long-Term Spending — Capital

24. Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) Assets

Movements in 2020/21:

O\
Operational Assets Non-Operational A > 1;otal
Classification Assets } lant &
Land & Vehicles & Infra- Comm- Unde quipment
Buildings Equipment structure unity Leased| Construction\ Buildi Assets
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 /£000 £'900 £'000
Cost or \\//
Valuation
At 1 April 2020 60,318 6,936 2,679 7,169 661 99 2,184 97,938
Additions 4,752 146 0 162 0 0 7,059
Revaluations (13,314) (93) 0 0 0 (171) | (13,578)
Disposals (495) (1,487) 0 0 12) (1,060) (3,054)
Reclassified 16,962 0 (430) 430 0 I\ (16,962) 94 94
At 31 March 2021 | 68,223 5502 2249 7,761 [ 649 |\ \ 3,028 1,047 | 88,459
Accumulated
Depreciation and &y
Impairment
At 1 April 2020 (6,019) (5,239) (835K ( 661) 0 (5) | (13,517)
Depreciation (1,024) (246) 40) (92) 0 0 0 (1,402)
charge
Depreciation 795 94 0 0 0 0 2 891
written out on
revaluations
Reversal of 4,972 0 0 0 0 0 4,972
Impairments
written out on loss
Disposals 3 @0 0 12 0 3 1,471
Reclassified 0 @ 0 0 0 0 0
At 31 March 2021 | (1,273} (3/93,?0 (875)  (850)  (649) 0 0| (7,585)
Net Book Value
at 31 March 2021 66,950 1,564 1,374 6,911 0 3,028 1,047 80,874
;‘f;f,‘\’n‘;‘:c‘:‘%pf,\ 1,697 1,844 6411 0 17991 2179 | 84,421
NV
61

Page 115




Notes to the Core Financial Statements

Comparative movements in 2019/20:

Operational Assets Non-Operational Assets
P Assets  Surplus
Classiication Land & Vehicles&  Infra- Comm.- Under  Land
Buildings Equipment structure unity Leased| Construction Buildin
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 '
Cost or Valuation
At 31 March 2019 | 49,366 6,434 2,674 5,690 661 16,839 419
Additions 1,764 718 5 1479 0 13, 372 5
Revaluations (2,703) (95) 0 0 0
Disposals 0 (121) 0 0 0
Reclassified 11,891 0 0 0 0 12@2(3\
At 31 March 2020 | 60,318 6,936 2,679 7,169 661 /\1\991
Accumulated Depreciation and Impairments
At 31 March 2019 | (1,006) (5,110) (796) (646) (661) v 0 (8,219)
Depreciation (857) (326) (112) 0 (5) (1,339)
charge
Depreciation 810 95 0 6 911
written out on
revaluations >
Impairment written | (4,972) &C 0 0 (4,972)
out on loss
Disposals 0 0 0 0 102
Reclassified 6 0 0 (6) 0
At 31 March 2020 | (6,019) (5,239) /(8}5) (758)  (661) 0 (5) | (13,517)
Net Book Value
at 31 March 2020 54,299 1,697 1,8 411 0 17,991 2179 84,421
Net Book Value
at 31 March 2019 48,360 @ 5,044 0 16,839 1,419 74,864

The movement from ‘Asse

project, becoming op
in the Losses and |

a, part of the Slttlngbourne Town Centre regeneration

. The revaluation movements are described further

Page 116

62




Notes to the Core Financial Statements

Surplus Land & Buildings

The Council’s surplus assets have been revalued this year and the inputs used to measure
their fair value have been assessed as being within hierarchy Level 2 for valuation purpos
(see accounting policies note for explanation of fair value valuation input levels).

This confirms that no significant unobservable inputs have been used in the valuatio

he

Council’s surplus assets and that they are all valued to their highest and best value.

to the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement.

25. Non-Current Asset Valuation

s-property portfolio
red Surveyors.

stmentand held for sale properties.

¢ following dates: 1 January 2021
2920.

Head and

2021, but the result was that there were no material changeés to the valuations advised. Mr K

Parker, a member of the Royal Institutio
the Council, reviewed both tasks.

The table below shows the progress €
non-current PPE assets: S

bChartered Surveyors (RICS) and an employee of

g programme of revaluation of the Council’s

Page 117

Assets Total Property,
Under Surplus Plant &
Land & Véhicles & fra- Comm- Construc- Land & Equipment
Buildin%s/@; ure unity Leased tion Buildings Assets
£0 000, £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Carried at W/ 2249 7,761 0 3028 0 13,038
historical cost
Carried at cost model 5,502 0 0 649 0 0 6,151
(depreciated historical cost)
Valued at curren s at
Previous ye 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2016/17 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,888
201718 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,468
2018/19 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,308
2,051 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,051
61,508 0 0 0 0 0 1,047 62,555
2
b 68,223 5,502 2,249 7,761 649 3,028 1,047 88,459
-/ ]




\ Notes to the Core Financial Statements

The Council has undertaken a review of all assets that were valued before 2020/21 to ensure
that their carrying value does not differ materially from current value.

As previously advised, each of the PPE asset classifications are revalued periodically in
stages on the basis recommended by CIPFA and in accordance with the Statements of 2

Valuation Principles and Guidance Notes issued by RICS. In order to ensure consistercy’in
the valuation of the varying types of property within the different asset classifications
assets of the same type are valued at the same time, using the same valuation technigu

26. Losses and Impairments on Non-Current Assets

year in the asset balances for property, plant and equipment and investmen

During 2020/21 the Council has recognised a net total loss/impairiye £13;939,710 in

respect of its non-current assets (£4,930,130 recognition of losses i 1972
PPE Heritage  2020/21 2019/20
Assets Assets Total Total
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Revaluation — increase recognised in deficit on (189 0 (159) 338
Provision of Services (gain — reversal prior loss)
Depreciation written out to the deficit on Provision of 0 0 389 38
Services (gain — reversal prior loss)
Total Reversal Prior Loss (credit to deficit) (No 230 0 0 230 376
20)
Revaluation — increase recognised in deficit 0 130 0 130 133
Provision of Services (gain) (Note 20)
Total Gain (credit to deficit) 7230 130 0 360 509
Revaluation — decrease recognised.i (16,273) 0 (5) (16,278)  (4,383)
Provision of Services (loss)
Depreciation written out to th 318 0 0 318 623
Services (loss)
Revaluation — decrease re 0 (5) 0 (5) (14)
Provision of Services (loss)
Total Losses (debit to defici : (15,955) (5) (5)  (15,965)  (3,774)
Revaluation - n recognised in the deficit on 1,898 0 0 1,898 (1,898)
ices (impairnjent reversal)
e deficit on Provision of (233) 0 0 (233) 233
: )
ersal (debit to deficit) (Note 1,665 0 0 1,665  (1,665)
e oss)/Reversal-Gain Debited/Credited (14,060) 125 (5) (13,940)  (4,930)
eficit on Provision of Services

Page 118 64



Notes to the Core Financial Statements \

The greatest revaluation gains, reversals of previous losses, on PPE assets (£20,000 and
over) were incurred on three properties (6 assets including component assets), the gains
being the Sheerness Swimming Pool £102,040 (structure and roof components), Trinity 3
car park in Sheerness £41,560 (land and building components) and Albion Place car p4
Sheerness £35,820 (land and building components). Seven other properties (13 asget
incurred reversed losses, averaging £7,240 per property.

Three investment properties (4 assets) incurred gains totalling £129,700. Thege sverexh
Trading Estate, West Lane, Sittingbourne £71,400, Lappel Bank, West Minstek £5¢,900 and

components), Princes St. Retail Park, Sittingbourne (£488,650) (
components), Swale House council offices, Sittingbourne (£156,1¢
electrical, lift and external components), the Multi-Storey car park,

construction having been completed, doe onsideration of such non-

construction costs and reflects mainly the yalue to the Council in operating this property, as in
current and future projected rental incg he Council’s external valuer’s have commented
that it is not unusual for buildings to cag han the final valuations, and accordingly this

required change in valuation asses :
value of the property which musybe déscriked as a revaluation loss. However, the prime

consideration of the Council in @ is property was the regeneration of Sittingbourne
town centre and improved cg

gurpeéd’on two Investment properties (3 assets), the Old Fire
Station House, Court StreetM-avergham (£5,100) (land and building assets) and land at Kwik
itt srneé (£100).

A revaluation loss of £5,
asset further torea

s also incurred by the Rushenden Hill stone structure heritage
f the insurance valuation.

Page 119 65



\ Notes to the Core Financial Statements

27. Heritage Assets
Reconciliation of the carrying value of Heritage Assets held by the Council:

War Memorials Historical Items Total
& Public Civic of Cultural Civic Heritage
Statues Regalia Interest Clocks As%:s\
£000 £000 £000 £000

Cost or Valuation
At 1 April 2020 112 356 11 0 9
Recognised 0 0 0 1 464 1 464
Revaluations (5) 45 4

At 31 March 2021 107 401 115 1 462\ \2\0\87
Net Book Value 107 401 115

at 31 March 2021

Net Book Value 112 356

at 31 March 2020 @%

\Y4

The six civic clocks, located at Faversham, Sittingbourne (2), Milton, nborough and
Sheerness, have now been recognised as heritage assejs—Fhe Iargest f these valuations is

£1.25 million, being the clock and tower in Sheerness High-Street, a grade Il listed structure of
cast iron construction, built in 1902 to commemorate t eio of King Edward VII.

28. Investment Properties

~7

The following items of income and expense have be ded within Financing and
Investment in the Comprehensive Incom%Expenditure tatement (Note 11):

2020/21 2019/20

£000 £000

Rental income from investment propertie (249) (245)
Direct operating expenses arising fromyin ent properties 86 34
Net (Gain)/Loss & (163) (211)

The net gain on revaluatioy f
gain in 2019/20) from re
investment property po
purposes (see accounti

investmentproperties in the year was £124,500 (£108,500
rsed/prior losses of £129,700 and losses of £5,200. The Council’s

te for explanation of fair value valuation input levels).

2020/21 2019/20

£000 £000

Balance as at i 3,568 3,460
Gains fromr vatliatjo 125 108
Reclassifi (94) 0
Balancetas 3,599 3,568

Page 120 66




Notes to the Core Financial Statements

Significant changes in any of the judgements made on fair values could result in a

significantly lower or higher fair value measurement for these assets. If the value of the
Council’s investment assets were to reduce by 10% this would result in £359,870 being

charged to the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement.

29. Assets Held for Sale

The sole asset classed as Held for Sale was revalued in the year and the current net b

assessed to meet the ‘available for immediate sale’ requirement
Sale asset.

cildoe
assets (for example, grants paid to external organisationgs A
derived from this expenditure, it is treated as re eX[S e

venue
Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statemey@h a S

ar that it was incurred.

Page 121

Grant Area Funding-Provider 2020121 2019720
£'000 £'000
Queenborough & Rushenden Klondyke Land Homes and 1,136 0
Communities Agency
Disabled Facilities Grants (DFG) Mandato Ministry for Housing, 824 1,530
Communities & Local
Government
Highways works Sittingbourne Town Ceyitre Kent County Council 130 64
Murston OId Church Swale Borough Council 100 0
Milton High Street Clock & Clo Swale Borough Council 53 0
Land Regeneration/Improvep g at Dolphin Barge  Swale Borough Council 52 0
Museum and Sittingbourne
Coastal monitoring Environment Agency 47 40
Shared Information Techn Swale Borough Council 42 53
Sheppey Hall Improvements Swale Borough Council 40 0
iation New Building & Swale Borough Council 25 0
. Nicholas Road, Private Developer 21 0
ents Mewington Recreation Ground Swale Borough Council 20 0
street footpath Spirit of Sittingbourne 13 40
Ministry for Housing, 13 0
Communities & Local
Government
eaky Lucy/Minibus Replacement Swale Borough Council 10 0
ousiag répair grants Swale Borough Council 1 3
67



Notes to the Core Financial Statements \

Grant Area Funding Provider 2020021 2019120
£'000 £'000
The Mill Project, Sittingbourne Skate Park Private Developer 1 p
Sheppey Lower Road improvement Swale Borough Council 0 00<
Faversham Pool refurbishment Swale Borough Council 0 /93
2,528 {2,023

31. Commitments under Capital Contracts

The contractual commitments and commitment to spend at 31 March 2021

e £439,210 Sittingbourne town centre regeneration works,
e £371,050 Housing repair grants,
e £293,850 Leisure centres refurbishment,

e £60,000 Beach huts,
£39,510 Lighting, St Ann’s Footbridge, Fave

inance it. The Capital Financing Requirement is a
urred historically by the Council that has yet to be
financed.

Page 122 68



\ Notes to the Core Financial Statements \

2020/21 2019/20
£000 £000
Opening Capital Financing Requirement 42,739 27,765
Total capital investment 9,588 19,869
Add long-term debtors - loans 15 8
Sources of Finance:
Capital receipts (Note 16) (24)
Government grants & external contributions (Note 20) (2,308)
Sums set aside from revenue:
Capital reserves (Note 20) (832)
Direct revenue funding (Note 20) (2
Minimum revenue provision (MRP) (Note 20) lé\ ( 4
Total Sources of Finance (3 969) \
Closing Capital Financing Requirement 42,739
Explanation of Movements in Capital Financing Requirement in Year: \/
Capital expenditure to be funded from future MRP when assets are 15,608
operational
(Reduction) in underlying need to borrow (MRP) (634)
Total Increase in Capital Financing Requirement \5,934 14,974

Creditors and Debtors Q

33. Long-Term Creditors

As consideration for the extension of a curren ears, tenants have paid the
Council a premium of £60,000.

34. Short-Term Creditors

/\

~ % 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

£000 £000

Business rate relief grant funding (M ) (9,291) 0

Business rates — pool share (2,722) (2,812)
Coronavirus business support granis:

Closed business lockdown 3 (2,306) 0

Local restrictions grant 4 lockdown 3 tier 3 (2,138) 0

Local restrictions gran ef lockdown 2 (764) 0

2 (641) 0

(970) (330)

- VAT (568) 0

(547) 0

(446) (338)

(105) (778)

(42) (2,646)

0 (5,465)

C and Kent & Medway Fire & Rescue Service shares 0 (1,093)

(3,691) (3,023)

(24,231) (16,485)

usiness rate relief grant funding was received from central Government to aid
h flows during 2020/21.

Page 123 69



Notes to the Core Financial Statements \

During the year the Council acted as an agent for the government in several areas, where
grant was received and then distributed externally to support businesses, or individuals. To
reflect that the Council acted as agent for the government, amounts outstanding are shown jn
the Balance Sheet as a net creditor. The most significant grants provided additional suppg
to small businesses, and businesses in the retail, hospitality, and leisure sectors and thgs
subsequently required to close due to local or national lockdown. These grants are shéy
separately on the table above. None of the income or expenditure has been include
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

response to the coronavirus pandemic which resulted in a deficit on the Caq
2020/21 (surplus in 2019/20).

35. S106 Deferred Revenue Receipts

Section 106 (S106) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 a

36. Capital Grants and Contributions

The Capital Grants and Contributions accoun
contributions where conditions are outstanding. sed
expenditure. This includes monies receivegd, for S106 purposes (see Note 35) to fund new
facilities provided as part of an agreer}eé% developers.

AN

Expenditure Income 31 March 2021

£000 £000 £000

Disabled facilities grants 1,061 (2,473) (3,430)

Sittingbourne Town Centre grant 130 (29) 0

Faversham Recreation Ground gya A 86 (45) (33)

Klondyke land at Queenborough § 1,136 (1,136) 0
Rushenden Home of England gra

Redevelopment of Master's He 53 (293) (240)
Sheerness Decarbonis [

Other (269) 47 (77) (299)

5106 held for third parties (1,040) 574 (7,334) (7,800)

S$106 Capital Fundings

Housing (324) 0 (320) (644)

Play areas (170) 12 (174) (332)

(31) 0 0 (31)

(321) 13 0 (308)

(134) 13 (24) (145)

(197) 23 (2,015) (2,189)

(4,679) 3,148 (13,920) (15,451)

Page 124 70



Notes to the Core Financial Statements \

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
£'000 £'000
Due to spend within one year (short-term creditors) (599) (299N,
Due to spend in more than one year (long-term liabilities) (14,896) (4,384Y/
Total (15,451)

In 2020/21 nothing was repaid. (£30,000 was repaid to Optivo as requested in relati
Hugh Price Close play area improvement in 2019/20). The increase in S106 monig

by other public bodies and not Swale Borough Council.

37. Provisions

Arrangement”. The provision for future claims has been calculated
March 2021. This sum will be revised as further information becom

The Council has made a provision of £4,744,000 for business~ate appedls based on its best
estimates of the actual liability as at 31 March 2021. £,@ as been identified as a

long-term provision. See Note 51 for further details.

38. Long-Term Debtors — Other

Long-term debtors are those that fall due after, iod.of at least one year.
' 31March2021 31 March 2020
£000 £000
Housing repair loans 2,002 2,047
Council tax — KCC, Kent & Medway Fire C ice and Kent 994 0
Police & Crime Commissioner shares
Business rates — central Government 92 0
Business rates — KCC and Kent & way Fi Rescue Service 19 0
shares
Rent deposit scheme — gross deb 61 69
Rent deposit scheme — allowd ppairment of debts (46) (99)
Assisted car purchase loan$ 138 165
Opportunities for SittingbOtrne G 118 118
Faversham Town Footba ol 39 42
Queenborough HarbourTrus Sommunity Interest Company (CIC) 24 27
Borden Sport Li 12 12
Other long-ter I 16 16
Total 3,469 2,441

V

Page 125 4



\ Notes to the Core Financial Statements
39. Short-Term Debtors

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

|
£000 3 >

Debtors
Council tax — KCC, Kent & Medway Fire & Rescue Service and Kent 4,502 %
Police & Crime Commissioner shares
Business rates and council taxpayers 2,926 0 b
Business rates — central Government share 2,511 )
Housing benefits overpayments 2,257
Sundry debtors

Business rates — pool share
Additional coronavirus funding (MHCLG)
Her Majesty’s Revenue and Customs (HMRC) — VAT

Business rates — KCC and Kent & Medway Fire & Rescue Service
shares

Department for Works and Pensions (DWP) — housing benefits

Heritage Lottery Fund — Faversham Recreation Ground 632
Payments in advance 234
Other 2,091 1,212
Total Debtors Q 20,601 13,979
Impairment for Doubtful Debt

Housing benefit overpayments (1,462) (1,429)
Other (1,933) (1,614)
Total Impairment for Doubtful Debt (3,395) (3,043)
Net Short-Term Debtors /D 17,206 10,936

There are no non-financial assets (e.q.housing.benefit overpayments, council tax or business
rate payers) that are outstanding debtas at the reporting date that have not been impaired.
ist debt’impairment is based on the recovery action,
age of the debt. Further details for council tax

in the Collection Fund Note 50.

the percentage of debt paid to
and business rate payers cag

¥that an impairment for doubtful debts of 41% (£1.9m) was
tion rates were to fall, the cost of covering the impairment of
an additional £19,000 to be set aside for every 1% reduction in

the coronavirus pandemic which resulted in a deficit on the Collection Fund for
urplus in 2019/20).

Page 126 72



Notes to the Core Financial Statements

40. Cash and Cash Equivalents

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

£000

Cash (overdrawn) by the Council (2,429)
Money market funds (see Note 42 Table 4) 20,115
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 17,686

expenditure in the Council’s accounts, but which had not yet been cleared as)
bank account.

Leases

41. Leases

Disclosures in Relation to Operating Leaseg™ €
The Council holds a number of operating lease yv\l third

Main Classifications of Usage of Operating Leases™ w
with Third Parties Rentals Payable Rentals Payable
2020/21 2019/20
£000 £000
Business premises 1,405 1,170
Industrial units 112 112
Other 117 117
Total /(? (\ 1,634 1,399
A~ \ \\_// /
Future Minimum Lease Payments Wncellable 2020/21 2019/20
Leases Expiring in Future Xears , ,
£000 £000
Not later than 1 year 83 81
Later than 1 year and not¥aterthan 600 376
Later than 5 years 30,231 31,820
Total o~ 30,934 32,277

FinanciJ {62 keés

\t//
iaklnstfuments

Page 127 73



| Notes to the Core Financial Statements |
a) Financial Instruments — Classifications

A financial instrument is: “Any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity
and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity”.

b) Financial Instruments — Balances

Financial instruments have a specific definition and exclude some items whichy«
included on the Balance Sheet and therefore the figures below differ from those
shown on the Balance Sheet. For reconciliation to cash and cash equival
see Table 4 below and Note 40. A reconciliation is available on request 10
Finance Department on finance@swale.gov.uk.

Table 1
Financial Liabilities Long-Term
2020/21 2049 2019/20
£000 £000
Cash and cash equivalents 0 428)  (3,239)
Loans from other local authorities @ (15,000) (20,000)
Other creditors 0 , (3,936) (2,820)
Total Financial Liabilities 0 \(5000)  (21,364) (26,059)
Table 2
Financial Assets ~Term Current
2019/20 2020/21 2019/20
£000 £000 £000

Amortised Cost
Housing interest free loans
Employee car loans

2,047
165

0
0
0
1

0

0
Mortgages S 0
Other debtors 224 2,522 1,54
Fair Value Through Profit and Loss
Money market funds 0 0 20115 21,238
CCLA property fund (long-term invest% 2,916 2,938 0 0

Total Financial Assets A 5,280 5,379 22,637 22,779

Wf a loss allowance reflecting the statistical
y’'debtar wi unable to meet their contractual commitments to

gaihs/and losses recognised in the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure
t under Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure are as follows:

Page 128 74



Notes to the Core Financial Statements \

Table 3

2020/21 2019/20

£000 0
Financial Liabilities
Interest costs on leases
Interest costs on loans 1

Financial Assets - Interest Income:
Amortised cost: fixed term deposits and call accounts
Fair value through profit and loss: money market funds and CCLA
Losses from change in fair value (Note 11)

Net Loss for the Year

e) Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities

alue—of financial instruments valued at
amortised cost to what their value would be at ai
0

March 2020).

f) Nature and Extent of Risks Arising fro

risk management programme takés/account of the unpredictability of financial markets
erse effects on the resources available to fund

to be accommodated. The S i 0 advise as to whether new borrowing taken out

: sthe aim of the Council to minimise interest paid on
borrowing and maximisé the arned on investments but, in the case of investments,
protection of the capi istfake precedence over the rate of return.

ént Strategy was approved by Council on 26 February 2020
and can be obtained from t ouncil’s website using the following link:
https://services swale.ggv: eetings/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=128&MId=2162&Ver=4

guidity Risk — the possibility that the Council might not have the funds available to
neet its payment commitments; and,

Page 129 75



Notes to the Core Financial Statements

e Market Risk — the possibility that a financial gain or loss might arise for the Council
due to movements in interest rates, market prices, foreign currency exchange rates,
etc. The Council’s investment in the CCLA is subject to the risk of falling commerci
property prices. This risk is limited by the Council’s maximum exposure to propert
investments of £3m. A 5% fall in commercial property prices would result in a
£150,000 charge to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services which i n
transferred to the Pooled Investment Funds Adjustment Account.

Credit Risk

among these is the evaluation of counterparty risk, which uses a
and limits on the term and maximum value of any deposits.

eI to be surrendered in the
ilNreturn-to Or exceed pre coronavirus

Strategy.

The CCLA Property Fund is a long term investment and
near future and where the expectation is that val
values over the medium to long-term.

The table below summarises the Council’s investmen orrowing portfolio at 31 March
2021. All investments made were in line with the Councit$ approved credit rating criteria at
the time of placing the investment, and et those criteria at 31 March 2021.

Table 4
Counterparty A4 Balance Invested at Balance
31 March 2021 £°000 Invested at
(MMF = Money Market Funds) Fair Upto Greater 31 March
Value 1 than3 2020
Level month months Total £000
Invesco MMF mmf 1 3,000 0 3,000 3,000
JPM Liquidity MMF mmf 1 3,000 0 3,000 3,000
SSgA MMF AAAmMmf 1 2,275 0 2,275 2,180
Goldman Sachs MMF AAAMmf 1 0 0 0 2,538
Morgan Stanley MMF AAAmMmf 1 2,840 0 2,840 3,000
Black Rock M AAAmMmf 1 3,000 0 3,000 3,000
AAAmMmf 1 3,000 0 3,000 3,000
AAAmMmf 1 0 0 0 1,520
AAAmMmf 1 3,000 0 3,000 0
20,115 0 20,115 21,238
1 0 2,916 2,916 2,938
0 2,916 2,916 2,938
20,115 2916 23,031 24,176

Page 130 76



Notes to the Core Financial Statements \

Counterparty Balance Invested at Balance
31 March 2021 £°000 Invested at
(MMF = Money Market Funds) Fair Upto Greater 31 Marc >
Long-Term Value 1  than3 20 0<
Rating Level month months Total 0
London Borough of Havering 2 0 (5,000) (5,000) 0

Wycombe District Council Loan
London Borough of Camden Loan
London Borough of Islington Loan
Brighton and Hove City Council Loan
Greater London Authority Loan
Total External Borrowing

NN

0
0
0
0
0
0

as at 31 March 2021 (nil as at 31 March 2020).

The rating above is from the Fitch credit rating agency. A descriptior e grading is
provided below:

o AAAmMmMf

e Level 2 inputs — measurements other than quotethgrices included within Level 1 that
are observable (e.g. they can be medsured or found from existing data and records) for
the asset, either directly or indirgctlys

The Council’s Relationship.wit

er Organisations

43. Related Parties

al transactions with related parties, bodies or
ontrol or influence the Council or to be controlled or

Page 131 77



\ Notes to the Core Financial Statements \
Members and Officers

Members of the Council have direct control over the Council’s financial and operating polici
The total of Members’ allowances paid in 2020/21 is shown on Note 8. The Council main

a ‘Register of Members’ Interests’ which can be found on the Council website at:
https://swale.gov.uk/news-and-your-council/performance-and-transparency/councillorsand-
elected-members/reqister-of-interests

been involved in any material transactions with the Council. Returns were recej
of the 2020/21 financial year from Members and senior officers and there w

Accounts. During 2020/21, no officers declared a pecuniary interest i
section 117 of the Local Government Act 1972.

Thames Gateway Kent Partnership

rom 1 April a new
th Kent authorities.

On 31 March 2021 the Thames Gateway Kent Partnership closed do
partnership, Greater North Kent, is leading collaboration between the

44. Group Accounts

was undertaken to identify any subsidiaries, asso
whether a group relationship exists for the purp

ompany Number 09400214) — This company

enture between the Council and U&l, the lead
z artium. The only transaction undertaken has

been the purchase of 34 High Stréeft Si '

Council’s interest in the entity as been assessed to be non-controlling but having a

significant influence and so ) enaccounted for as an Associate.

e PSP Swale LLP (Compan aber OC4/16830) — This partnership was registered on 8
April 2017 and Swale Borough\( in partnership with PSP Facilitating Limited, who
’ ership. The Partnership did not carry out any
financial year other than the required administrative

transactions throughQ
returns etc. This c¢

ating costs of the partnership since inception.

{mited (Company Number 12417065) — This company was
020. It is wholly owned by the Council. The company leases
otel from the Council which is part of the Sittingbourne Town
.)This company received £211 rental income in 2020/21.

es Ltd (Company Number 13338973) — This company was registered
he company is to deliver affordable homes. It is wholly owned by the

total investment in these entities has been assessed as immaterial and the Council
degided that group accounts are not required.

Page 132 78



Notes to the Core Financial Statements \

Further Adjustments Between Accounting Basis and Funding
Basis

45. Adjustments Between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis Under
Regulations

This note details the adjustments that are made to the total Comprehensive Inco
Expenditure Statement recognised by the Council in the year in accordance wit
accounting practices, to the resources that are specified by statutory provisio
available to the Council to meet future capital and revenue expenditure. /N

2020/21 Usable Reserves

A

General Capital Ca 2019/20
Fund Receipts Gra Unusable
Balance Reserve Una eserves Reserves
£000 £000 8 £000
Adjustments to Revenue Resources
Pension costs (2,039) 0 2,331
Pooled Fund Adjustment Account (21) 0 110
Council tax and business rates (7,820) (82)
Capital grants moved to Capital Grants Unapplied 64 (64) 0 0
Reversal of entries for capital expenditure (17,984) (\8\ 0 17,984 8,337

Total Adjustment to Revenue Resources

Adjustments Between Revenue & Capital Resources
Transfer of cash sale proceeds from non-current assets (1,549) 0 1,495 0
to Capital Receipts Reserve (CRR)

(64) 27,864 10,696

Statutory provision for financing of capital investment 778 0 0 (778) (634)
(MRP)

Capital expenditure charged to the General Fun 860 0 0 (860) (873)
Total Adjustments Between Revenue & Capi 692  (1,549) 0 (143) (1,507)
Adjustments to Capital Resources

Use of the CRR to finance capital expend 0 24 0 (10) (298)
Capital Grants used to finance capital ex 2,292 0 15 (2,321) (3,098)
Total Adjustment to Capital RW 2,292 24 15 (2,331) (3,396)
Total Adjustments /> N (23,816)  (1,525) (49) 25,390 5,793

Page 133 79



\ Notes to the Core Financial Statements \
46. Expenditure and Funding Analysis 2019/20

2019/20
Service Departments Net
Expenditure Budget
Reported to Respon-

Cabinet  Capital Pension sibility
£000 £000 £000 £000

Chief Executive 251 14 55 2

Policy, Communications & Customer Services 1,093 0 244 68

Democratic Services 1,007 14 82

Director of Regeneration 181 0

Housing, Economy & Community Services 3,502 53

Planning 1,305 0

Commissioning, Environment & Leisure 5,612 6,072

Finance 737 452

Revenues & Benefits (359) 0

Property 677 70

Licensing & Resilience Planning (2) 3

Environmental Health 510 9

Information Technology 1,101 o7

Internal Audit 175 0

Human Resources 403 5

Legal 468 (101)

Corporate ltems 2,211 /> 3 4 7 (2,081) 164
Cost of Services 18,87 6,767 2,662 0  (960) 27,345
Financed by Council Tax, Business Rates (18,

& Grants

Deficit in Year

General Fund Balance at 1 April 2019
Deficitin Year

2018/19 Approved Rollovers

General Fund Balance at 31 March 202

fi Ig%enacﬁor the year as reported to Cabinet. The middle
8 tobe madeto the figures reported to Cabinet in order to report

¢cpunting basis which is shown in the column on the right.

The left hand column shows th
columns show changes that
the Council’s expenditure opf g

The table below reconciles the
the 2019/20 ComprehensjveNnco

st of Bervices to the Surplus on the Provision of Services on
& Expenditure Statement:

et Expenditure Budget Net Expenditure

2019/20 Reported to Respon- Accounting
Cabinet Capital Pension sibility Other Basis

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

18,876 6,767 2,662 0 (960) 27,345

(11,017)  (1,826) 1,341 0 (9,620) (21,122)

7,859 4,941 4,003 0 (10,580) 6,223

(7,562)  (4,941) (4,003 0 10,580 (5,926)

297 0 0 0 0 297

Page 134 80



Notes to the Core Financial Statements

Collection Fund

As a billing authority, Swale Borough Council collects council tax and business rates from
taxpayers and redistributes them to other local authorities and the Government. Because
Council is collecting these taxes on behalf of others, under statute, it has to hold these
transactions in a separate account known as the Collection Fund.

subsequent financial year in their respective proportions.

Statement is the Council’s share of the Collection Fund’s accrued inor he/year. The
difference between this value and the amount required by regulation ta b€ efedited to the
General Fund is taken to the Collection Fund Adjustment Account via the Movement in

Reserves Statement.
o\authorities — KCC, Kent Police
S eryice, and collects business
a ¢ ahd Rescue Service. Parish

precepts are paid from the Council’s General Fund isetosed on the face of the

The council tax and business rate income included in the Comprehngliv ncome & Expenditure
O

The Council collects council tax on behalf of the major p
and Crime Commissioner and Kent & Medway Fire a

Page 135 81



Notes to the Core Financial Statements

. Note Business Rates Council Tax
Collection Fund 2020/21 £000 £000
Income
Council tax receivable 48 0 (87,142)
Transfer for S13A(1)(C) Reliefs 0 (1,079
Business rates receivable 49 (34,716) 0
Sub Total (34,716) (88,221)
Contribution towards previous year’s Collection Fund forecast deficit
Central Government (355) 0/ —_ 5
Sub Total (355) o {1\ \355)
Total Income (35,071) 88,221\ "\ (123/292)
Expenditure Y
Precepts, demands and shares:
Central Government 24,689 0 24,689
Swale Borough Council 19,752 1 29,948
Kent County Council 4,444 64,9 69,403
Kent & Medway Fire and Rescue Service 494 % 4,306
Kent Police and Crime Commissioner 0 , 9,766
Sub Total \$8,733 138,112
Cost of collection 0 187
Disregard amounts — renewable energy 0 1,026
Transitional protection payments 0 223
Allowance for debt impairment 50 1,281 1,988
Appeals charged to the collection fund 0 (1,725)
Change in provision for check, challenge 51 0 3,453
and appeals
Sub Total 871 1,281 5,152
Contribution towards previous year’s Collectigh¥und forecast surplus
Swale Borough Council 149 3 152
Kent County Council 575 21 596
Kent & Medway Fire and Rescue Service 4 1 5
Kent Police and Crime Commissioner 0 3 3
Sub Total 728 28 756
Total Expenditure 53,978 90,042 144,020
Deficit Movement for the Yea 18,907 1,821 20,728
(Surplus)/Deficit at 1 April,2020 (985) 392 (593)
Deficit at 31 March 2029 \//7 47 17,922 2,213 20,135
82

Page 136




Notes to the Core Financial Statements

. Note Business Rates Council Tax Total
Collection Fund 2019/20 £000 £000 £000
Income
Council tax receivable 48 0 (84,603) (84,603)
Business rates receivable 49 (49,562) 0 S
Transitional protection payments (310) 0 RV
Sub Total (49,872) (84,603) (134,475)

Contribution towards previous year’s Collection Fund forecast deficit

Central Government (27) 0 7
Swale Borough Council (145) 145)
Kent County Council (187) Q 187)
Kent & Medway Fire and Rescue Service (3) <\O\ (3)

Sub Total (362) R NV (362)
Total Income (50,234) {(3%,603) ) ) (134,837)
Expenditure D%
Precepts, demands and shares:
Central Government 23,971 23,971
Swale Borough Council 19,177 28,802
Kent County Council 4,315 65,835
Kent & Medway Fire and Rescue Service 480 4,161
Kent Police and Crime Commissioner m 9,145 9,145
Sub Total 47,943 83,971 131,914
Cost of collection 186 0 186
Disregard amounts — renewable energy , 0 1,286
Allowance for debt impairment 50 904 1,291
Appeals charged to the collection fund (3,770) 0 (3,770)
Change in provision for check, challenge 51 939 0 3,939
and appeals
Sub Total 2,028 904 2,932
Contribution towards previous year’s Co nd forecast surplus
Swale Borough Council 0 40 40
Kent County Council 0 253 253
Kent & Medway Fire and Rescue Ser 0 15 15
Kent Police and Crime Commissione 0 35 35
Sub Total 0 343 343
Total Expenditure 49,971 85,218 135,189
(Surplus)/Deficit Moveme# fea (263) 615 352
(Surplus) at 1 April 20 (722) (223) (945)
(Surplus)/Deficit at 31 Ma 0 47 (985) 392 (593)
The 2019/20 fig

res\hay, enl restated to show disregard amounts for renewable energy, and
G tion fund separately.

are shown in the Balance Sheet as a net debtor or creditor. This reflects that billing
are acting as agents of the precepting authorities and Government.

Page 137 83




Notes to the Core Financial Statements

2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 2019/20
Business Rates Council Tax Total Total
£000 £000 £000 0
Central Government 8,961 0 8,961
Swale Borough Council 7,169 254 7,423 (
Kent County Council 1,613 1,620 3,233 (343)
Kent & Medway Fire & Rescue Service 179 95 274 7
Kent Police and Crime Commissioner 0 244 244 TSN\ 4
Balance at 31 March 17,922 2,213 20438\ \(593]

The 2019/20 figures have been restated to include the correct business rate g

offset in 2021/22 from government grants received.

48. The Calculation of the Council Tax Base

Band Bam Proportion of Number of Band D
£ Band D Charge Equivalent Dwellings

A p3. 6/9 4,159.83
B 719 9,533.37
C 8/9 12,600.27
D 9/9 9,949.90
E 11/9 6,307.84
F 13/9 3,408.56
G 15/9 1,920.90
H 18/9 192.00
Total 48,072.67

Decision on 30 January 2020 by using the following link:
.uk/meetings/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=221&MId=2291

-payment provided for in the calculation of the tax base for 2020/21 was
86% in 2019/20). The original anticipated income from the tax base of 48,072.67 at

Page 138 84



\ Notes to the Core Financial Statements

The main reason for the decrease in actual council tax income receivable was due to the
Council using discretionary powers under S13A(1)(C) of the Local Government Finance Act
1992 to reduce the council tax liability of individuals in the borough in response to the
coronavirus pandemic. £1,079,072 was fully funded by the Council by way of a transfer fr
the general fund to the collection fund. The Council was reimbursed in full via S31 gran
funding from the Governments hardship fund which was created as a direct response e
coronavirus pandemic in the 2020 spring budget.

49. Income Collectable from Business Ratepayers

(1%). The business rate income after reliefs and deductions for 2020/
(£47,844,049 in 2019/20 (restated to exclude deductions in line with 2020/2

The rateable value for the Council’s area at the end of the financial\ys 020721 was
£130,699,135 (£131,429,735 for 2019/20).

2019/20 2020/21 2019/20

Council Tax  Council Tax

£000 £000 £000

Balance brought forward 1 April (1,635) (2,364) (1,909)
Less amounts written off 0 41 461 449
(Increase) in provision <\ (707) (387) (1,281) (904)
Balance at 31 March /(2 688) (1,981) (3,184) (2,364)
Swale Borough Council’s prg{/p(?on/\ (1,075) (792) (357) (272)

o~debst over five years old was £0.4m.

Page 139 85



\ Notes to the Core Financial Statements \
51. Provision for Check, Challenge and Appeals for Business Rates

2020/21
£000
Balance brought forward 1 April (10,131)
Less amounts charged to appeals 1,725
(Increase) in provision (3,453) s
Balance at 31 March (11,859) 0,131)
Swale Borough Council’s proportion (4,744 N4 2\7

Amounts refunded as a result of appeals against the 2010 Rateable Valuatio
Check, Challenge Appeal (CCA) against the 2017 RV are charged directly 6
alteration of lists and appeals. Any amounts refunded in excess of the prov
charge to the Collection Fund.

national level of potential appeals amended to reflect local circumsts
appeals.

their financial impact on the Council are monitored reg(lz he number of properties
under appeal changes, the provision for appeals would rg an additional £118,600 for

Page 140 86



Glossary

Accruals

The inclusion of outstanding debtors and creditors in the year’s
income, expenditure and capital expenditure.

Amortised Cost

/)
BN

re

Amortised cost (in relation to financial instruments) is the amo
initial recognition plus the interest taken to income and expe
less cash paid or received for both interest and principal.

Asset

An item having value measurable in monetary terms.
asset has use and value for more than one year; ac
expected be converted into cash within a year. N

Mure,

Expenditure on the acquisition of a non-current asset\ar
n

Capital Financing

Capital Expenditure |which adds to and not merely maintains the value-of an existing non-
current asset.
The raising of money to pay for capital e ~including

ita
| ei

borrowing, revenue financing, usable capi
and capital contributions.

Capital Receipts

The proceeds of the sale of ca&itaﬁa‘ssits.

Code of Practice on
Local Authority
Accounting in the UK
2020/21 (The Code)

This specifies the principles a WS of accounting required to
prepare a Statement of A€cgunts whi esents “a true and fair view”
of the financial position/ané\{ransactiers of the Council.

AN

Collection Fund

~
A separate fund maintained b illing council which records the
expenditure any@ome relating to council tax and business rates.

Community Assets

Non-current 4s t the local council intends to hold in perpetuity,

useful life and that may have restrictions

ICr)]c;r;rgreegenswe This~e We income the Council has received to fund the day-
E : to4d dituré on the services it has provided during the financial
xpenditure oA
Statement 4 : />
Q \ou%\tf/{oéed by the Council for works done, goods received or
Creditor % estendered before the end of the accounting period but for

high)payments have not been made by the end of that accounting
eri

he value of a non-current asset which reflects the economic
environment prevailing for the service or function the asset is
supporting at the reporting date.

Amounts due to the Council for works done, goods received or
services rendered before the end of the accounting period but for
which payments have not been received by the end of that accounting
period.

~

Page 141 87



Glossary

The measure of the cost or revalued amount of the benefits of the

Depreciation non-current assets that have been consumed during the period. S
The price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to trangfer g\
Fair Value liability in an orderly transaction between market participants e
measurement date. @
, A reduction in the value of an asset below its carryinm e
Impairment (\

Balance Sheet.

Infrastructure Assets

Non-current assets whose life is of indefinite Iengt%&k/w not
and.footpatks,

Intangible Assets

usually capable of being sold, such as highways
These are non-financial assets that do not ha \Pwi\cge}}
but are identifiable and controlled by the Council thxou

rights (e.g. software). m

ubstance
stom legal

Internal Borrowing

If capital expenditure is spent which is not i M ately financed
through capital receipts or grants, the Counciks ynderlying need to
borrow (its Capital Financing Reguirement) inckgases, resulting in a
Minimum Revenue Provision en the Council reduces its
cash balances to cover this expé & then this is called ‘internal
borrowing’.

/>
International Guidelines and rules set b heMnal Accounting Standards
Financial Reporting | Board that companie rgaqisations can follow when compiling
Standards financial statements.
Investment Investment r;?xéﬁe:\are those that are used primarily to earn rentals
Properties and/or for capital appreciation.
@A

Liabilities @r:;tigr;z}ﬁ@a v;!be e payable by the Council in the short or

Inf awial if omitting it or misstating it could influence
Materiality dgcisio rs make on the basis of financial information about

CUCI%

Minimum Revenu

Provision (MRP) QQ

We Council’'s General Fund balance to make provision for
\IQ e ent of the Council’s past unfunded capital expenditure.

Non-Ope
Assets

A
L)~

\;e/Nfay)urrent assets which are not used or consumed in the delivery of
S ices or for the service or strategic objective of the Council.

Y
Opera@% e

A lease where the ownership of the long-term asset remains with the
lessor.

sets

@era iQna

Non-current assets held and occupied, used or consumed by the local
council in the direct delivery of those services for which it has either a
statutory or a discretionary responsibility or for the service or strategic
objectives of the Council.

)
=/

Page 142 88



Glossary ‘

Precept

The levy made by those authorities which do not run the local taxation
system, e.g. KCC, Kent & Medway Fire and Rescue Service, Kent
Police and Crime Commissioner, on Swale Borough Council whic
collects the required income from local taxpayers on their behalf. A

Property, Plant and

W
An asset that has physical substance which is used in the provision of
services and is expected to be in use for longer than one year~Jh

Expenditure Funded
from Capital under
Statute (REFCUS)

Equipment value is depreciated over the estimated life of the asset
/TN

A provision is made when the Council has a present dbligai
Provision result of a past event and it is probable that the C il Wl

required to settle that obligation.

The accumulation of surpluses and deficits ov N@s
Reserves Reserves of a revenue nature are available and can bespént or

earmarked at the discretion of the Counc{fg\

X~

Revenue Legislation allows some expenditure to be ¢lassified as capital for

funding purposes when it does not result in a\non-current asset on the

Balance Sheet. Such expenditure-is-charged t
Income & Expenditure Statem/zﬁe):\&n\

Useful Economic Life

non-current asset.

The period over which

t%o@ benefits from the use of a

Acronyms Used:

SN

Page 143

Church, Charities and L MKS Mid Kent Services
CCLA Authorili
uthorities o MMF Money Market Funds
clpFa | Chartered Institute o “@Nb MRP Minimum Revenue Provision
Finance and Accpdniancy
CPI Consumer Price{ll(dex (\ PPE Eroperty, Plant and
quipment
CRR Capital Recppts\@éseiv,e// Revenue Expenditure
AS Internatiofia AgCounting” REFCUS | Funded from Capital under
Standa /> Statute
IERS Interati WI RICS Royal Institution of
Repor ndards Chartered Surveyors
KCC nt County Qouncil RPI Retail Price Index
LGPS @c\aﬂ-ﬁ%ven{ment Pension S106 Section 106 — See Note 35
cpeme SMT Strategic Management
wﬂ Housing, Team
MHCL \8 unities and Local VAT Value Added Tax
N overnment
\/)élovement in Reserves
- MIR St
atement

89




Page 144



Page 145



Contacting Swale Borough Council

The Customer Service Centre deals with all enquiries
across the Council; it should be your first stop when
contacting us.

Copies of this Statement of Accounts
for the year ended 31 March 2020
are available on the council website

Front cover top right clockwise: West Street, Faversham — Sittingbourne High Street,

Sheerness Seafront and Bredgar.

Page 146

—
AN
o
AN
()
c
=}
=S
™
(p]
(90
o
o
Q)
©
[
>
(@)
©)
=
(@)
2
o
=
(@)
m
Q
@®
P
0p]
©
S
5
|_
(@)
=
pher]
(0]}
4
—
©
=
©
C
@
(2]
c
0
=]
L)
Q2
c
=}
S
£
(@)
©)
()
e
=]
>
o)
i®)]
(0}
(&)
=)
1®)]
(@)
fust
o




Independent auditor's report to the members of Swale Borough Council

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion on financial statements

We have audited the financial statements of Swale Borough Council (the ‘Authority’) for the year ended
31 March 2021, which comprise the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, the Movement
in Reserves Statement, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement, the Collection Fund and notes to
the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC code of
practice on local authority accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21.

In our opinion, the financial statements:

e give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Authority as at 31 March 2021 and of its
expenditure and income for the year then ended;

e have been properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local
authority accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21; and

e have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act
2014.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and
applicable law, as required by the Code of Audit Practice (2020) (“the Code of Audit Practice”) approved
by the Comptroller and Auditor General. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the ‘Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements’ section of our report.
We are independent of the Authority in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We are responsible for concluding on the appropriateness of the Director of Resources’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Authority’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify the auditor’s opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Authority to cease to continue as a
going concern.

In our evaluation of the Director of Resources’ conclusions, and in accordance with the expectation set
out within the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority accounting in the United Kingdom
2020/21 that the Authority’s financial statements shall be prepared on a going concern basis, we
considered the inherent risks associated with the continuation of services provided by the Authority. In
doing so we had regard to the guidance provided in Practice Note 10 Audit of financial statements and
regularity of public sector bodies in the United Kingdom (Revised 2020) on the application of ISA (UK)
570 Going Concern to public sector entities. We assessed the reasonableness of the basis of
preparation used by the Authority and the Authority’s disclosures over the going concern period.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Authority’s ability
to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements
are authorised for issue.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Director of Resources’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Page 147

Grant Thornton UK LLP. 1



The responsibilities of the Director of Resources with respect to going concern are described in the
‘Responsibilities of the Authority, the Director of Resources and Those Charged with Governance for the
financial statements’ section of this report.

Other information

The Director of Resources is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual Financial Report, other than the financial statements. Our opinion on
the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we
identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine
whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the
other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of the other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Other information we are required to report on by exception under the Code of Audit Practice

Under the Code of Audit Practice published by the National Audit Office in April 2020 on behalf of the
Comptroller and Auditor General (the Code of Audit Practice) we are required to consider whether the
Annual Governance Statement does not comply with ‘delivering good governance in Local Government
Framework 2016 Edition’ published by CIPFA and SOLACE or is misleading or inconsistent with the
information of which we are aware from our audit. We are not required to consider whether the Annual
Governance Statement addresses all risks and controls or that risks are satisfactorily addressed by
internal controls.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters required by the Code of Audit Practice

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit of the financial statements and
our knowledge of the Authority, the other information published together with the financial statements in
the Statement of Accounts for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is
consistent with the financial statements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report to you if:

e we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act
2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or

¢ we make a written recommendation to the Authority under section 24 of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or

¢ we make an application to the court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary to law under
Section 28 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the
audit; or;

e we issue an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the
course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or

e we make an application for judicial review under Section 31 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act
2014, in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit.

We have nothing to report in respect of the above matters.

Page 148

Grant Thornton UK LLP. 2



Responsibilities of the Authority, the Director of Resources and Those Charged with
Governance for the financial statements

As explained in the Statement of Responsibilities, the Authority is required to make arrangements for
the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that one of its officers has the
responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this authority, that officer is the Director of
Resources. The Director of Resources is responsible for the preparation of the Annual Financial Report,
which includes the financial statements, in accordance with proper practices as set out in the
CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21, for being
satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Director of Resources
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Director of Resources is responsible for assessing the
Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless there is an intention by government
that the services provided by the Authority will no longer be provided.

The Audit Committee is Those Charged with Governance. Those Charged with Governance are
responsible for overseeing the Authority’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the
Financial Reporting Council’s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms
part of our auditor’s report.

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including
fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design
procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect
of irregularities, including fraud. Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk
that material misstatements in the financial statements may not be detected, even though the audit is
properly planned and performed in accordance with the ISAs (UK).

The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed
below:

¢ We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the
Authority and determined that the most significant ,which are directly relevant to specific assertions
in the financial statements, are those related to the reporting frameworks (international accounting
standards as interpreted and adapted by the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority
accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21, the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, the
Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, the Local Government Act 2003, the Local Government Act
1972, the Local Government Finance Act 1988 (as amended by the Local Government Finance Act
1992), and the Local Government Finance Act 2012.

e We enquired of senior officers and the Audit Committee, concerning the Authority’s policies and
procedures relating to:
— the identification, evaluation and compliance with laws and regulations;

— the detection and response to the risks of fraud; and

— the establishment of internal controls to mitigate risks related to fraud or non-compliance with
laws and regulations.

Page 149

Grant Thornton UK LLP. 3


http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities

We enquired of senior officers, internal audit and the Audit Committee, whether they were aware of
any instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations or whether they had any knowledge of
actual, suspected or alleged fraud.

We assessed the susceptibility of the Authority’s financial statements to material misstatement,
including how fraud might occur, by evaluating officers’ incentives and opportunities for manipulation
of the financial statements. This included the evaluation of the risk of management override of
controls, fraudulent revenue recognition and fraudulent expenditure recognition. We determined that
the principal risks were in relation to journal entries we considered to be high risk and management
bias in the calculation of significant estimates subject to a high level of estimation uncertainty and
sensitivity to small changes in assumptions.

Our audit procedures involved:

evaluation of the design effectiveness of controls that the Director of Resources has in place to
prevent and detect fraud;

— journal entry testing, with a focus on manual journal entries and those made after the year end or
considered irregular based on journal posting patterns identified by our review of the general
ledger;

— challenging assumptions and judgements made by management in its significant accounting
estimates in respect of land and buildings, investment property, and defined benefit pensions
liability valuations;

— testing income and expenditure recognition; and

— assessing the extent of compliance with the relevant laws and regulations as part of our
procedures on the related financial statement item.

These audit procedures were designed to provide reasonable assurance that the financial
statements were free from fraud or error. However, detecting irregularities that result from fraud is
inherently more difficult than detecting those that result from error, as those irregularities that result
from fraud may involve collusion, deliberate concealment, forgery or intentional misrepresentations.
Also, the further removed non-compliance with laws and regulations is from events and transactions
reflected in the financial statements, the less likely we would become aware of it.

The audit team discussed the risk of the Authority’s potential non-compliance with relevant laws and
regulations, the potential for fraud in revenue and expenditure recognition, and the significant
accounting estimates related to land and buildings, investment property and defined benefit
pensions liability valuations.

Assessment of the appropriateness of the collective competence and capabilities of the engagement
team included consideration of the engagement team's.

— understanding of, and practical experience with audit engagements of a similar nature and
complexity through appropriate training and participation

— knowledge of the local government sector

— understanding of the legal and regulatory requirements specific to the Authority including:
— the provisions of the applicable legislation
— guidance issued by CIPFA, LASAAC and SOLACE
— the applicable statutory provisions.

In assessing the potential risks of material misstatement, we obtained an understanding of:

— the Authority’s operations, including the nature of its income and expenditure and its services
and of its objectives and strategies to understand the classes of transactions, account balances,
expected financial statement disclosures and business risks that may result in risks of material
misstatement.

— the Authority's control environment, including the policies and procedures implemented by the
Authority to ensure compliance with the requirements of the financial reporting framework.

Page 150

Grant Thornton UK LLP. 4



Report on other legal and regulatory requirements — the Authority’s
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its
use of resources

Matter on which we are required to report by exception —the Authority’s arrangements for
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources

Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, we have not been
able to satisfy ourselves that the Authority has made proper arrangements for securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2021.

Our work on the Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use
of resources is not yet complete. The outcome of our work will be reported in our commentary on the
Authority’s arrangements in our Auditor's Annual Report. If we identify any significant weaknesses in
these arrangements, these will be reported by exception in a further auditor’s report. We are satisfied
that this work does not have a material effect on our opinion on the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2021.

Responsibilities of the Authority

The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency
and effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper stewardship and governance, and to review
regularly the adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the review of the Authority’s arrangements for securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources

We are required under Section 20(1)(c) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to be satisfied
that the Authority has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in
its use of resources. We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of
the Authority's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources
are operating effectively.

We undertake our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard to the guidance
issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General in April 2021. This guidance sets out the arrangements
that fall within the scope of ‘proper arrangements’. When reporting on these arrangements, the Code of
Audit Practice requires auditors to structure their commentary on arrangements under three specified
reporting criteria:

e Financial sustainability: how the Authority plans and manages its resources to ensure it can
continue to deliver its services;

e Governance: how the Authority ensures that it makes informed decisions and properly
manages its risks; and

e Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness: how the Authority uses information about its
costs and performance to improve the way it manages and delivers its services.

We document our understanding of the arrangements the Authority has in place for each of these three
specified reporting criteria, gathering sufficient evidence to support our risk assessment and
commentary in our Auditor's Annual Report. In undertaking our work, we consider whether there is
evidence to suggest that there are significant weaknesses in arrangements.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements — Delay in
certification of completion of the audit

We cannot formally conclude the audit and issue an audit certificate for Swale Borough Council for the
year ended 31 March 2021 in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability
Act 2014 and the Code of Audit Practice until we have completed:

Page 151

Grant Thornton UK LLP. 5



e our work on the Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in
its use of resources and issued our Auditor's Annual Report.

e the work necessary to issue our Whole of Government Accounts (WGA) Component
Assurance statement for the Authority for the year ended 31 March 2021

We are satisfied that this work does not have a material effect on the financial statements.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the members of the Authority, as a body, in accordance with Part 5 of the
Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and as set out in paragraph 43 of the Statement of
Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited.
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Authority’s members those matters
we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Authority and the
Authority's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Signature:
Darren Wells, Key Audit Partner

for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP, Local Auditor

London

Date:

Page 152

Grant Thornton UK LLP. 6



	Agenda
	5 Treasury Management Outturn Report for 2020/21
	6 Annual Financial Report 2020/21 and Audit Findings Report
	SBC Audit Findings Report 13.10 Appendix I
	SBC Letter of representation 2020-2021 Appendix II
	Annual Financial Report 2020-21 Subject to Audit
	SBC Final Audit Opinion 20.21 131021


